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Agenda Item 2.1
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
WOODHILL HOUSE, ABERDEEN
THURSDAY 25 JUNE, 2015
Present:-

Councillors P J Argyle, Chairperson, R Milne, Vice-Chairperson, D
R Aitchison, J B Cox, R Grant, S W Pratt (Substituting for Cllr B A
Topping), E A Robertson (Substituting for Cllr P W Bellarby) and N
J Smith

Apologies:

Councillors P W Bellarby, J Corall, A Finlayson, R Thomson, B A
Topping and I Yuill

Officers:-

Strategic
Development
Planning
Authority:
Strategic
Development Plan Manager
Aberdeen City Council:
Planning and Environment Policy
Manager
Aberdeenshire Council: Head of Planning and Building
Standards, Senior Sustainability, Information and Research
Officers (M Greig and S Shaw), Accountant (R Taylor) and
Committee Officer (F Brown).

OPENING COMMENTS BY THE CHAIR
(1)

The Chair welcomed Councillor D R Aitchison to his first meeting of the
Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) following recent changes
to Aberdeenshire Council’s administration.
Councillor Aitchison would
replace Councillor Merson as a substantive member to the Authority. The
Chair reported that Councillor Merson had been a founding member of the
SDPA and the Chair on behalf of the Authority extended his gratitude to
Councillor Merson for his long term commitment and contribution to the work
of the SDPA.

(2)

The Chair welcomed Ruth Taylor, Accountant to her first meeting of the
SDPA following the recent secondment of Tom Buchan as Facilities Manager
within Aberdeenshire Council.

DECLARATION OF MEMBERS’ INTEREST
Councillor P J Argyle, R Grant and R Milne declared an interest in Agenda Item 2 by
virtue of their membership of the North East of Scotland Transport Partnership
(Nestrans) however, as their interests were non pecuniary they intimated that they
would take part in the discussion when that item was being considered.
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 24 APRIL, 2015
1.

The Authority had before them the minute of the previous meeting of 24 April,
2015.

(i)

With reference to Item 6(a) the Strategic Development Plan Manager advised
the Authority that the application for planning permission in principle for
residential development at Auchattie, Banchory had been presented to
Aberdeenshire Council at their meeting of 18 June, 2015 and the Council had
agreed to refuse the application.
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(ii)

With reference to Item 6(b) the Strategic Development Plan Manager advised
the Authority that the application for Full Planning Permission for the
Construction and Operation of a Carbon Capture, Compression and
Conditioning Plant at Peterhead Power Station (a National Development) had
been presented to Aberdeenshire Council at their meeting of 18 June, 2015
and the Council had agreed to grant the application.

The Authority resolved:
(i)
To approve the minute as a correct record; and
(ii)
To note the verbal update for Item 6(a) and 6(b) of the minute.
ADOPTION OF SUPPLEMENTARY GUIDANCE – STRATEGIC TRANSPORT
FUND
2.

With reference to the Minute of the Meeting of the Strategic Development
Planning Authority meeting of 24 April, 2015 (Item 7) there had been
submitted a report by the Strategic Development Plan Manager which
provided the authority with an update on the review of the Supplementary
Planning Guidance following the approval of the Strategic Development Plan
(SDP) and which requested consideration by the Aberdeen City and Shire
Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) to adopt the statutory
Supplementary Guidance on a Strategic Transport Fund as presented in
Appendix 2 to the report.
The Strategic Development Plan Manager introduced the report and advised
the Authority that the SDPA at their last meeting had agreed to make
amendments to the guidance in light of consultation responses and the
guidance had then been submitted to Scottish Ministers for the statutory 28
day consultation period for them to decide whether to issue a Direction
regarding the adoption of the guidance.
It was reported that the Scottish Government had responded to the Strategic
Development Plan Manager on 2 June, 2015 as presented as Appendix 1 to
the report and that response had indicated that Scottish Ministers had given
notice that the Strategic Transport Fund Supplementary Guidance may not be
adopted until the following modification was made:6.1 A planning obligation or other legal agreement will normally be
used to secure contributions, although in appropriate cases up-front
contributions will also be acceptable. In such cases, the receipt will
set out the circumstances under which it will be used. The use of
any planning obligation shall follow the guidance in Circular
3/2012: Planning Obligations and Good Neighbour Agreements.
These will be paid into a dedicated strategic transport fund.
The Strategic Development Plan Manager advised the Authority that the
additional sentence would not present an obstacle to adoption and that
sentence had been incorporated within the text of the supplementary
guidance as presented in Appendix 2 to the report.
The next stage would be to present the proposed supplementary guidance for
ratification by Aberdeenshire Council on 20 August, 2015 and Aberdeen City

Page 4

on 27 August, 2015 with a view to the supplementary guidance then coming
into force on 28 August, 2015.
The report recommended that the Authority:(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

Adopt the Supplementary Guidance: Strategic Transport Fund as statutory
supplementary guidance to the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic
Development Plan 2014;
Refer the report to the Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee of
Aberdeen City Council and the Infrastructure Services Committee of
Aberdeenshire Council for ratification;
Agree that, subject to ratification by both councils, the statutory guidance
would come into effect on 28 August 2015; and
Agree that the current non-statutory supplementary planning guidance would
cease to be used with effect from 28 August, 2015.

The Authority resolved:
To agree the recommendations as set out in the report and to thank the Strategic
Development Plan Manager and his team for the innovative policy.
HOUSING LAND AUDIT 2015
3.

The Authority had before them a report which reported the results of the 2015
Housing Land Audit as presented in Appendix 1 to the report and the
implications for the housing land supply position.
The report advised that the supply in each of the housing market areas was
above the 5 year housing requirement of the Strategic Development Plan and
as such no action was required beyond the continued implementation of the
Strategic Development Plan and the two Local Development Plans. The 5
Year Effective Housing Land Supply identified in the 2015 audit is 12,091
units in the AHMA and 3,686 units in the RHMA. That equates to a housing
land supply of 7.7 years and 5.5 years respectively when measured against
the Strategic Development Plan requirement.

The report recommended that the Authority:Note the contents of the 2015 Housing Land Audit.
The Authority resolved:To agree the recommendations as set out in the report.
TAYPLAN PROPOSED STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN
4.

The Authority had before them a report by the Strategic Development Plan
Manager which sought consideration of the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic
Development Planning Authority (SDPA) to agree a response to the TAYplan
Proposed Strategic Development Plan which covered Dundee, Angus, Perth,
Kinross and North Fife.
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The Strategic Development Plan Manager introduced the report and advised
the Authority that the consultation period for the proposed plan would end on
3 July, 2015 and there were five issues which were worthy of addressing as
the response from the SDPA which would build on their previous response to
the Main Issues report which was submitted in June, 2014, namely:•
•
•
•
•

Increased Housing Flexibility;
New Stations;
Road and Rail Improvements;
Carbon Capture and Storage; and
Laurencekirk

The report recommended that the Authority:Agree the report as the Authority’s response to the TAYplan Proposed Strategic
Development Plan.
The Authority resolved:To agree the recommendations as set out in the report.
PLANNING PERFORMANCE REPORT 2014/15
5.

The Authority had before them a report by the Strategic Development Plan
Manager which sought consideration by the Aberdeen City and Shire
Strategic Development Plan Authority (SDPA) to agree the Planning
Performance Report for 2014/15 and its publication on the SDPA website and
onward submissions to the Scottish Government by the submission deadline
of 31 July, 2015.
The Strategic Development Plan Manager introduced the report and advised
the Authority that the Planning Performance Report for 2014/15 as presented
in Appendix 1 to the report followed the same format as the previous year
which was largely prescribed by Head of Planning Scotland and the Scottish
Government to ensure consistency.
It was reported that the National Headline Indicators which were relevant to
the SDPA were presented on Page 12/13 of the report and all targets were
being met.

The report recommended that the Authority:Approve the Planning Performance Framework 2014/15 as presented in Appendix 1
to the report as well as its publication and submission to the Scottish Government.
The Authority resolved:To agree the recommendation as set out in the report.
SDPA BUDGET MONITORING POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH, 2015
6.

The Authority had before them a report by the Treasurer to the SDPA which
provided the Authority with the budget monitoring position for 2014/15 as at
31 March, 2015 as presented in Appendix 1 to the report.
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The report informed the Authority that the costs of the Authority were broadly
in line with the budget but with a detailed underspend being attributed to staff
costs following the unsuccessful recruitment for the post of Senior Planner
which it was reported had been vacant for the whole financial year. The report
advised that as at 31 March, 2014 Aberdeen City Council had contributed
£69,000 and Aberdeenshire Council had contributed £52,000 and the
resulting surplus of net expenditure was £21,000 which would be split with
£19,000 being returned to Aberdeen City and £2,000 to Aberdeenshire
Council so that both Authorities will have paid an equal amount.
The report recommended that the Authority:(i)

Note the budget monitoring position as at 31 March, 2015; and

(ii)

Approve the return of surplus income at year end to Aberdeen City Council of
£19,000 and to Aberdeenshire Council of £2,000.

The Authority resolved:To agree the recommendations as set out in the report.
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2014/15
7.

The Authority had before them a report by the Treasurer which sought
consideration by the Authority of the Unaudited Statement of Accounts for
2014/15 as presented in Appendix 1 to the report.
The Accountant introduced the report and drew the Authority’s attention to the
Movement in Reserves Statement which showed there had been no
movement in the reserves of £104,000; the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the Balance Sheet which detailed the SDPA
unaudited financial position as at 31 March, 2015.
It was report that there would be a change to the report and the Appendix
before final submission to the external auditor to reflect recent staff changes
within Aberdeenshire Council. Alex Stephen was Head of Finance and as
such was now Treasurer to the SDPA following a recent appointment of Alan
Wood to the post of Director of Business Services.

The report recommended that the Authority:(i)

note the Unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2014/15 and approve their
issue to the Authority’s external auditor and the Controller of Audit; and

(ii)

agree the return of £19,000 to Aberdeen City Council and £2,000 to
Aberdeenshire Council, to redistribute the net underspend of £21,000.

The Authority resolved:To agree the recommendations as set out in the report.
SDPA BULLETIN – JUNE 2015
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8.

The Authority had before them an information bulletin prepared by the
Strategic Development Plan Manager which informed members on key issues
relating to the work of the Authority where no decisions were currently
required and verbal updates on each item were provided since publication
where required
Details contained within the bulletin included:(1)

Planning Reform announced by the Cabinet Secretary
It was reported that there were no further details of the process or
remit of the review for Planning Reform which would focus on
development planning and housing delivery, however, a report would
be presented to a future SDPA meeting when there was more clarity
on national discussions to ensure the authority was actively engaged
in that process.
During discussion the Authority requested that a letter should be
drafted and sent to the Cabinet Secretary which would highlight that
the SDPA as well as both Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire were
already focusing on development planning and housing delivery and
doing it very well.

(2)

Local Development Plans Update
It was reported that Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire were both
working towards the submission of their Local Development Plans for
examination later on in the year.
During discussion the Authority welcomed the progress made by each
Council in the preparation for their replacement plans and it was
acknowledged that this was a huge testament to the ongoing work of
all of the officers involved.

(3)

SDPA Membership (Aberdeenshire Council)
It was reported that Aberdeenshire Council had agreed to change their
nominations to the SDPA following a change of administration on 8
June, 2015. While it was reported that there was no change,
Aberdeenshire Council had resolved to change the membership at
their meeting of 18 June, 2015, namely:Substantive Members
Councillor D R Aitchison
Councillor P J Argyle
Councillor P W Bellarby
Councillor J B Cox
Councillor N Smith
Councillor B A Topping

(4)

Substitute Members
Councillor J N Gifford
Councillor I W Gray
Councillor G Owen
Councillor S W Pratt
Councillor E A Robertson
Councillor S W Smith

Planning Applications of Strategic Importance
It was reported that the SDPA consultation response on the planning
proposal by NorthConnect for onshore works associated with an
electricity interconnector to Norway was presented as Appendix 1 to

Page 8

the Bulletin report and the application would be determined by
Aberdeenshire Council in August, 2015.
The Authority resolved:
(i)
To note the content of the bulletin;
(ii)

To write to the Cabinet Secretary to highlight the excellent work being done
already within Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire for development planning
and housing delivery; and

(iii)

To note the changes to the SDPA membership.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
9.

The Authority noted that the next formal meeting of the SDPA would be held
on Wednesday 23 September, 2015 at 2.00pm in the Council Chamber, Town
House, Broad Street, Aberdeen.
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Agenda Item 3

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 23 September 2015
Title: AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2014/15 and
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

This report submits the audited Statement of Accounts for 2014/15 to be
approved by the Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) for
signature and for the information of the Authority, the Independent Auditor’s
Report on the audit.

2

Background

2.1

Local Authorities and similar bodies are required to ensure that they
demonstrate proper stewardship of their financial affairs. The Statement of
Accounts, together with the opinion expressed by the independent auditor on
the activities of the Authority, is designed to meet these requirements.

2.2

The independent auditor for the Authority, Deloittes LLP, has expressed an
unmodified opinion on these Statements and this is detailed in pages 23 and
24 of Appendix 1, the Statement of Accounts.

2.3

It is also a requirement of the governing regulations that the audited financial
statements will be made available for public inspection. The audited
Statement of Accounts will be available on the Authority’s website and can be
accessed and downloaded free of charge.

3

Statement of Accounts 2014/15

3.1

The audited Statement of Accounts is attached as Appendix 1, is prepared in
accordance with the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting in the
UK. The document comprises a number of statements, but Members’
attention is drawn to the following main items in particular:
Page

2-5

Page

9

Movement in Reserves Statements

Page

10

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

Page

11

Balance Sheet showing the SDPA audited financial position
as at 31 March 2015.

Page 23-24

Management Commentary

Independent Auditor’s Report

Page 11

3.2

Other prescribed financial statements are included as required along with
supporting notes to the statements where these are considered appropriate.
There are no Group Accounts to be commented upon.

3.3

Regular budget monitoring statements had been produced throughout the
year and it had been anticipated that the budget would be underspent, largely
due to recruitment difficulties and a reduced need to employ third party
contractors for discrete elements of work.

3.4

The actual contributions from the partner Councils is £100,000 which is
£74,000 lower than the budgeted amount and the costs incurred of £100,000
is similarly less than expected. The table on page 3 of the audited Statements
provides details of the actual performance of the major income and
expenditure headings compared to the budgeted level of activity.

3.5

The Short Term Creditors balance of £27,000 shown on the Balance Sheet
on page 11 of the Statement of Accounts includes £21,000 of contributions
that were received from the Partner Council’s in 2014/15, that were not
required to cover expenditure, (reference note 7 to the accounts, page 16 of
the Statement of Accounts). This money will be returned to the Partners.

3.6

The independent auditor’s report to the Authority is an important aspect of the
auditor’s work in expressing an opinion on the Statement of Accounts. A copy
has been included as Appendix 2 to this report. The report covers the
principal matters or issues that have arisen from the audit process and
provides a useful commentary on the Authority’s performance, corporate
governance and best value achievement as well as a review of areas of
significant audit risk. The report is very positive and attests to the strengths of
the systems and controls we have in place to manage the financial activities
of the Authority. There are no outstanding issues which have to be
addressed.

4.

Recommendations

4.1

The Authority is recommended to:
1 approve for signature the audited Statement of Accounts for 2014/15;
2 consider the Independent Auditor’s Report.

Alex Stephen
Treasurer
9 September 2015
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY
Introduction
The "Strategic Development Planning Authority" (SDPA) was designated by Scottish
Government Ministers on 25 June 2008 under the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006. The
Authority has 12 members, with six being appointed by both Aberdeen City and
Aberdeenshire Councils. The Chair and Vice Chair of the SDPA rotate on a 2 yearly cycle.
The Designation Order required Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Councils to jointly
prepare and keep under review a strategic development plan for a strategic development
plan area. The terms of reference agreed by the two Councils required that, prior to the start
of work on a strategic development plan, the SDPA would take forward work on a structure
plan commenced by the two Councils in early 2007. The Aberdeen City and Shire Structure
Plan was approved by Scottish Ministers in August 2009. It is a robust and visionary plan for
the future development of the area, identifying the need for a significant increase in historic
levels of housing and commercial development as well as the infrastructure required to
deliver it.
Since then, work has focused on its implementation, monitoring and the preparation of the
Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (SDP) which was approved by
Scottish Ministers on 28 March 2014.
Progress against Performance Indicators
A performance report is provided each year which considers the achievements of the
Authority in the year. The influence of a Strategic Development Plan has a longer timescale
than one year and annual indicators of performance are not considered appropriate. There is
close analysis of key trend areas over time to consider the appropriateness of the plan.
The Strategic Development Plan, Housing Land Audit and Employment Land Audit all
highlight the aspirational nature of the SDPA. Significant quantities of land are now available
to the development industry as a result of the strategic framework set by the SDP.
The Plan targets national recognition for schemes and award winning schemes are being
identified to the SDPA on a regular basis.
The SDPA has been awarded a Plain English Campaign “Crystal Mark” which recognises
the quality of the communications issued. Regular use of the Authorities website through its
E-update system allows interested parties access to the most up to date information and the
website is highly rated by major search engines.
No performance indicators have been specifically identified to measure financial
performance. However, the Authority agrees a budget in advance of each year and
considers a detailed budget monitoring report with a forecast for the year of income and
expenditure at each meeting. This allows regular and close scrutiny of activities against
specific financial targets to take place and is considered adequate for this organisation.

2
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Financial Performance Review
The Authority’s core funding and the support for its strategic programme from partner
Councils reflects their continued support. The budget provision was £174,000 (2013/14:
£170,000).
Review of Outturn against Budget for 2014/15
The budget for 2014/15 was underspent because of recruitment difficulties and a reduced
need to employ third party contractors for discrete elements of work. The total operating
expenses were £100,333 which is £73,667 less than budget and £33,667 less than the
forecast spend as at January.
The drawdown of funding from partner Councils has been reduced to match the expenditure
incurred.
Fuller details of the performance against budget is detailed below.
2013/14
Actual

2014/15
Budget

2014/15
Actual

£000

£000

£000

%
Actual
v
Budget

Partner Council
Other

170
0

138
36

100
0

72%
0%

Total Income

170

174

100

57%

94
76

109
65

66
34

61%
52%

170

174

100

57%

0

0

0

Staff
Other Costs
Total Operating
Expenses
Net
Surplus/(Deficit)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties
The principal risks facing the Authority, as with many such bodies, is the reliance on third
party funding to support its annual programme.
The relationships with partners is close and each local authority partner has identified
indicative budgets for the contributions for the next 5 years and appointed senior members
of their staff to act as professional advisors to support the SDP Manager. This ensures
engagement is maintained between parties at a senior corporate level.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)
We are confident that all material risks facing the Authority are known and that appropriate
measures are in place to overcome or at least mitigate the impact that these may have on
the continued operation of the Authority.
Main Trends and Factors Likely to Affect the Future Development, Performance and
Position of the Authority's Business
The Strategic Development Plan which has been approved by Scottish Government
Ministers outlines the key issues that the Authority will contribute towards and this will
influence the relationships and direction of travel that the Authority may follow. This is a
developing area and the Authority has developed a structure that allows an agile approach
towards positioning itself to accommodate any significant changes affecting this sector and
in particular those that have been identified in the wider development plans for the region.
Annual Accounts
The Authority is required to prepare Annual Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2014, which section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003 requires to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2014/15 (the Code) and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15
(SeRCOP), supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory
guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.
Going Concern
The budget for 2015/16 with funding levels in line with 2014/15 and indicative budgets for
2016/17 confirm that sufficient funding is available beyond April 2016 and so the Board has
a reasonable expectation that the Authority will continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. It is therefore considered appropriate to adopt a going concern basis for
the preparation of these statements.
Audit Information
The Authority and Manager at the date of this report confirms that:
•
•

So far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Authority’s auditor is unaware; and
They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a member or officer in
order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish
that the Authority’s auditor is aware of that.

Remuneration Paid to the Auditor for Non-Audit Work
No remuneration was paid to the Authority’s external auditor for non-audit work during
2014/15.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY (continued)
Pension Liabilities
The Authority does not have staff of its own. All officers are employed by Aberdeenshire
Council and are entitled to be members of the Superannuation Scheme which is
administered by Aberdeen City Council. This provides staff with defined benefits upon their
retirement and the employing Authority contributes towards the costs by making
contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries. There is no liability
for pension related costs falling on the Authority.
Events since the End of the Financial Year
We are not aware of any adjusting event that would have impacted on the reliability of the
information presented in this report or financial statements.
Future Developments
Future developments will generally be identified from change in Government or local
authority policy, changes in the development plan and / or wider economic changes in the
region. Close links are maintained with appropriate government departments and the
Structure Plan is regularly refreshed which will ensure that arising issues are identified early
enough to allow any appropriate action to be taken to re-position the Authority and its
activities.

Councillor Peter Argyle
Chairman

David Jennings
Manager

Date: 23 September 2015
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Alex Stephen
Treasurer

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
The Strategic Development and Planning Authority has a responsibility for ensuring that its
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public
money is safeguarded, properly accounted for, and used appropriately.
In discharging this responsibility the Strategic Development Plan Manager and Treasurer
have put in place proper arrangements for the governance of resources, approved by the
Authority. The Strategic Development Planning Authority has adopted a Code of Corporate
Governance which ensures the accountability and probity of officers. The Code is consistent
with the principles and reflects the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Note for
Scottish Authorities – Delivering Good Governance in Local Government (2007). This
framework has been updated with regard to the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) in Public Service Organisations.
The Code covers four key areas: Community Focus, Service Delivery, Structures and
Processes, and Risk Management and Internal Control. The Treasurer has the
responsibility for overseeing the implementation and monitoring of the operation of the Code
and reviewing the Code in practice. The Code is subject to regular review.
The Authority’s Code of Corporate Governance and the related systems of internal financial
control provide reasonable assurance that objectives will be met. The Strategic
Development Planning Authority adheres to the principles of openness, integrity and
accountability and takes all reasonable steps to ensure assets are safeguarded, transactions
are authorised and properly recorded, procedures are practical and adhered to and that
material errors are either prevented or detected within a timely period, and corrective action
taken.
The system of corporate governance and internal financial control is based on a framework
of financial regulations, management information and appropriate delegation with
accountability. In particular, the system includes:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Performance management;
Comprehensive financial management systems;
Periodic and annual financial reports;
Targets set for financial and other performance;
Clearly defined expenditure guidelines;
Formal project management disciplines;
Communication of financial information to the Manager and Members; and
Periodic review of all financial procedures.

The corporate governance and internal control procedures are informed by:•
•
•
•

Feedback from the Authority in carrying out its scrutiny role;
The work of the Manager within the Authority;
Internal Audit & External Audit; and
Partner and stakeholder feedback.

Progress continues to be made in respect of risk management. Risk Management is viewed
as essential in the context of financial governance. An increase in the awareness and
consequences of risk have become more prevalent within the Authority. The consideration
of risk has been recognised in the budget setting report and will be considered in all financial
governance procedures.

6

Page 19

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)
The Authority relies on the financial systems of Aberdeenshire Council. Aberdeenshire
Council’s Chief Internal Auditor has the responsibility to review independently, and report to
the Council’s Scrutiny and Audit Committee annually on the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control environment. The Chief Internal Auditor reports that, in his
opinion, based on his evaluation of the control environment, reasonable assurance can be
placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system in the year to 31
March 2015. On the basis of the Chief Internal Auditor’s report and his review of the
Authority’s corporate governance arrangements, we are satisfied that the arrangements
provide assurance, are adequate and are operating effectively.

Signed:

Councillor Peter Argyle, Chairman

Alex Stephen, Treasurer

Date: 23 September 2015
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
The Authority’s Responsibilities
The Authority is required to:
•

•
•

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that
one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
case, that officer is the Treasurer to the Authority;
manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets; and
approve the Statement of Accounts.

I confirm that these Statement of Accounts were approved for signature on by the Board at
its meeting on 23 September 2015.

Council Ramsay Milne, Chairman
23 September 2015
The Treasurer’s Responsibilities
The Treasurer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts in
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).
In preparing this statement of accounts, the Treasurer has:
•
•
•
•

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;
made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
complied with legislation; and
complied with the local authority Code.

The Treasurer has also:
•
•

kept proper accounting records which were up to date; and
taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

I confirm that this Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Authority at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Alex Stephen
Treasurer
23 September 2015
8
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
This Statement shows the movement in the year on reserves held by the Authority, analysed
into 'usable’ reserves and ‘unusable’ reserves. Usable reserves are those that can be
applied to fund expenditure subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and
any statutory limitations on their use. Unusable reserves include reserves that hold
unrealised gains and losses (for example the revaluation reserve), where amounts would
only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold
timing differences shown in the line “Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis under regulations”. The Authority does not have any unusable reserves.
The 'Surplus or (Deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Authority's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.
Unusable
Reserves

£000

Total
Usable
Reserves
£000

£000

Total
SDPA
Reserves
£000

Balance at 31 March 2013
Surplus or (Deficit) on
provision of services
Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding
basis under regulations
Increase / (Decrease) in
Year

104

104

0

104

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Balance at 31 March 2014
Surplus or (Deficit) on
provision of services
Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding
basis under regulations
Increase / (Decrease) in
Year

104

104

0

104

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Balance at 31 March 2015

104

104

0

104

General
Fund
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2015
This Statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with
generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from grants or
requisitions. SDPA receives contributions to cover expenditure in accordance with agreements.
This may be different from the accounting cost and the effect on the General Fund is shown in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.
£000
£000
Expenditure Income

167

0

3
170

0
0

0

(170)

2013/14
£000
Net

Note

Cultural,environmental,
regulatory and
167 planning services
Corporate and
3 Democratic Core
170 Cost Of Services

Requisitions and Non(170) Specific Grant Income

10

£000
£000
Expenditure Income

2014/15
£000
Net

98

0

98

2
100

0
0

2
100

0

(100)

(100)

(Surplus) or Deficit
on Provision of
0 Services

0

Other
Comprehensive
Income and
0 Expenditure

0

Total Comprehensive
Income and
0 Expenditure

0
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2015
The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of assets and liabilities
recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Authority.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves is usable reserves, i.e.
those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services. The second category of reserves
is unusable reserves, i.e. those that are not able to use to provide services. The Authority does
not have any unusable reserves.
31 March 2014
£000

31 March 2015
£000
Note

3
116
119

Short Term Debtors
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Current Assets

5

(15)
(15)

Short Term Creditors
Current Liabilities

104

Net Assets

104

104
0

Usable Reserves
Unusable Reserves

104
0

104

Total Reserves

104

11
7

The unaudited accounts were authorised for issue on 25 June 2015 and the audited financial
statements were authorised for issue on 23 September 2015 by Alex Stephen.

Alex Stephen
Treasurer
23 September 2015
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131
131
(27)
(27)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
The Cash Flow statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during
the reporting period. The statement shows how the Authority generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the
operations of the Authority are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients
of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future
service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on
future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.
2013/14
£000
0

2014/15
£000
Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services

0

(41)

Adjust net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
services for non cash movements

15

(41)

Net cash flows from Operating Activities

15

(41)

Net increase or (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

15

157

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting period

116

116

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

131

No interest was received in either the current or prior year.
There were no investing or financing activities in either the current or prior year.
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Note

11

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Note 1 Accounting Policies
General Principles
The Statement of Accounts summarises the SDPA’s transactions for the 2014/15 financial
year and its position at the year end of 31 March 2015. The SDPA is required to prepare an
annual Statement of Accounts by the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014,
of which section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 2003 require to be prepared in
accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 and the Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2014/15 (SERCOP), supported by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under section 12 of the 2003 Act.
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is historical cost.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.
Accruals and Income and Expenditure
Income and Expenditure activities are accounted for in the year in which they take place, not
simply when cash payments are made or received.
Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where
the debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to
revenue for the income that might not be collected.
Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset at one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument at another entity.
SDPA’s Financial Assets are Receivable which have fixed or determinable payments but are
not quoted in an active market, as well as cash and cash equivalents.
The Authority’s receivables are for periods of less than 12 months or are charged at a
market rate which equates to the actual carrying value at 31 March 2015.
SDPA’s Current Liabilities are shown as Creditors in the Balance Sheet and are for periods
of less than 12 months and so are initially measured at fair value and are carried at
amortised cost, which equates to the actual carrying value at 31 March 2015.
Financial Liabilities
The SDPA’s liabilities are shown as Creditors in the Balance Sheet and are for less than 12
months, they are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently carried at amortised
cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March 2015.
Requisitions and Contributions
Requisitions and contributions relating to revenue expenditure are accounted for on an
accruals basis and recognised immediately in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Requisitions and Contributions (continued)
Statement as income except where the grant or contribution has a condition(s) (as opposed
to restriction) that the SDPA has not satisfied, in which case it is recognised as a Creditor.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Authority uses Aberdeenshire Council’s bank account for financial transactions and the
balance is invested in the Council’s Loans Fund. This balance is repayable on demand and
therefore treated as a cash equivalent and is included in the Balance Sheet at amortised
cost, which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March 2015.
Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable During Employment
The SDPA does not directly employ staff but only reimburses the employing authority,
Aberdeenshire Council, for staff costs paid including any pension related costs as they are
incurred.
Post-Employment Benefits
Employees of SDPA are entitled to be members of the Superannuation Scheme which is
administered by Aberdeen City Council. This provides staff with defined benefits upon their
retirement, earned as employees work for the Authority.
However, the arrangements for the Superannuation scheme mean that liabilities for these
benefits cannot be identified specifically to the Authority. The scheme is therefore accounted
for as if it were a defined contribution scheme and no liability for future payments of benefits
is recognised in the Balance Sheet. The Cultural, Environmental, Regulatory and Planning
Services line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is charged with the
employer’s contribution payable to SDPA’s employees in the year.
Overheads and Support Services
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the
supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting
Code of Practice (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle is used with all overhead
costs identified within the Authority accounts, with the exception of:
Corporate and Democratic Core – costs relating to the SDPA’s status as a democratic
organisation.
Events after the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable
that occur between the end of the reporting period (the balance sheet date) and the date
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.
There are two types of events:
a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the balance sheet date
(adjusting events after the reporting period); and
14

Page 27

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 1 Accounting Policies (continued)
Events after the Balance Sheet Date (continued)
b) those that provide evidence of conditions that arose after the balance sheet date
(non-adjusting events after the reporting period).
The accounts are adjusted to reflect adjusting events after the reporting period and are not
adjusted to reflect non-adjusting events after the reporting period. Where a non-adjusting
event would have a material effect, disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the
events and the estimated financial effect.
Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.
Reserves
The nature of SDPA operations precludes it from creating reserves other than a General
Fund. This Fund or general reserve captures all assets and liabilities that are not assigned to
a special purpose fund.
Value Added Tax
VAT is included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement only to the extent
that it is irrecoverable.
Note 2 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Treasurer has had to make certain
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:
•

There is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government and
hence to funding for the SDPA. However, the Treasurer has determined that the level of
uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the activities of the Authority
might be affected by the need to reduce levels of service provision. On this basis the
Statement of Accounts continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Note 3 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty
The Statement of Accounts does not contain any estimated figures that are based on
assumptions made by the SDPA about the future or that are otherwise uncertain.
Note 4 Events after the Balance Sheet Date
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Treasurer to the Authority on 23
September 2015. Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial
statements or notes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about
conditions existing at 31 March 2015, the figures in the financial statements and notes have
been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 5 Short Term Debtors

Other Local Authorities

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

3

-

3

-

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

116

131

116

131

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

9
6

21
6

15

27

Note 6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises:

Temporary Investment in the Aberdeenshire
Council Loans Fund

Note 7 Short Term Creditors

Other Local Authorities
Other Entities and Individuals

Note 8 Reserves
Movements in the SDPA's usable reserves are detailed in the Movement in Reserves
Statement. The Authority does not have any unusable reserves.
Note 9 External Audit Costs
The Authority has incurred the following costs in relation to the audit of the Statement of
Accounts.

Fees payable in respect of external audit
Services:
Audit Fee
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2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

3

3

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 10 Requisition Income
The SDPA credited the following requisitions to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Credited to Requisitions and Non Specific Grant Income
Requisition from Aberdeen City Council
Requisition from Aberdeenshire Council

Returned to/(Charged to) constituent authorities
Aberdeen City Council
Aberdeenshire Council

Net Requisitions

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

94
82

69
51

176

120

9
(3)

19
1

6

20

170

100

Note 11 Cash flow – operating activities
Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements

Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for noncash movements
(Decrease) / Increase in Creditors
(Increase) / Decrease in Debtors
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

2013/14
£000

2014/15
£000

0

0

(38)
(3)
(41)

12
3
15

Note 12 Related Parties
The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties, which are
bodies or individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Authority, or to be
controlled or influenced by the Authority. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers of
the Statements to assess the extent to which the Authority may have been constrained in its
ability to operate independently, or may have secured the capacity to limit another party’s
ability to bargain freely with the Authority.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 12 Related Parties (continued)
Members
Members have direct control over the Authority’s financial and operational policies and
decision making. No allowances or fees have been paid to Members in 2014/15 and there
were no contracts awarded in which a Member had an interest.
Aberdeen City Council & Aberdeenshire Council
Aberdeen City Council & Aberdeenshire Council have a significant element of control over
the general operations of the Authority. They provide a significant element of funding
through two specific grants and the elected Members that they appoint to the managing
Board of the Authority can exert significant influence on its operations and decision making
processes. The amounts relating to each Council are detailed below.

Aberdeenshire Council
Aberdeen City Council

Amounts received from
2014/15
2013/14
£000
£000
50
85
50
85

Amounts paid to
2013/14 2014/15
£000
£000
67
97
4
2

Amounts due
to/(from) as
at 31 March
2015
2014
£000
£000
1
(3)
19
9

Officers
The management of the Authority is disclosed in the remuneration report on pages 20-22 of
this document. These officers have the responsibility for planning, directing or otherwise
controlling the activities of the Authority. Their scope of control is determined by reference to
the scheme of delegation and financial regulations adopted by the Authority. The Authority is
satisfied that appropriate controls are in place to manage and monitor the activities of the
key management personnel.
Note 13 Financial Instruments
The SDPA’s financial instruments comprise debtors and creditors. All of these are for less
than 12 months and are measured at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost
which equates to the actual cash value at 31 March 2015.
There are no gains or losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure
Statement in relation to financial instruments.
Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments:
The Authority has no material exposure to any of the following financial risks:
•
•
•

Credit risk – the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due.
Liquidity risk – the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments.
Market risk – the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a result of
changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS (continued)
Note 13 Financial Instruments (continued)
The Authority has reviewed all financial risks and does not believe that it is required to make
any provision within the financial statements for any financial risk exposure.
Note 14 Pension Scheme Accounted for as a Defined Contribution Scheme
The Authority’s staff are on secondment from Aberdeenshire Council and as such are
entitled to be members of the Superannuation Scheme which is administered by Aberdeen
City Council. This provides staff with defined benefits upon their retirement, and the
Authority contributes towards the costs by making contributions based on a percentage of
members’ pensionable salaries.
It is neither appropriate nor possible for the Authority to identify a share of the underlying
liabilities in the scheme attributable to its staff. For the purposes of the statement of accounts
it is therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme.
In 2014/15, the Authority reimbursed Aberdeenshire Council with £7,640 (£14,333 in
2013/14) in respect of superannuation contributions representing 19.3% of pensionable pay
(2013/14: 19.3%). The employing authority is responsible for all pension payments related
to “added years” it has awarded, together with related increases. There are no awards in
respect of staff seconded to SDPA.
Note 15 Accounting Standards that have been issued but have not yet been adopted
The adoption of the following accounting standards by the Code in 2015/16 will result in
changes in accounting policy:
•
•
•
•

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets (amended)
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
Annual Improvements to IFRS 2011-2013 Cycle
IFRIC 21 Levies

It is not anticipated that these changes will have a material effect for SDPA.
Note 16 New Accounting Standards effective in 2014/15
The following new standards, amendments and interpretations became effective in 2014/15
for the first time.
•
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 10 Consolidate Financial Statements
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements
IAS 28 Investment in Associated and Joint Ventures
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation

There is no impact on the financial statements as a result of the above.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
Introduction
The remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with the Local Authority Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2014. These Regulations require various disclosures about the
remuneration and pension benefits of senior Councillors and senior employees in respect of
earnings etc paid by the Authority. SDPA does not make payment to any member of the
Authority, whether elected Member or otherwise appointed, by way of salary, enhanced
pension benefits or reimbursement of expenses.
The Treasurer and Clerk to the Authority do not receive remuneration from the SDPA. The
duties of the posts are covered by the post holder’s substantive posts in their respective
Councils.
The information disclosed in the tables below is subject to independent audit.
Arrangements for Remuneration
The remuneration of all employees of SDPA is set by reference to national arrangements
agreed by the Scottish Joint Negotiating Committee (SJNC) for Local Authority Services.
SDPA does not pay bonuses or performance related pay. Officers receive business mileage
and subsistence allowances in accordance with amounts either agreed nationally by SJNC
or as approved locally by Aberdeenshire Council and adopted by SDPA. Officers are eligible
to join the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS).
Remuneration
The term remuneration means gross salary, fees and bonuses, allowances and expenses,
and compensation for loss of employment. It excludes pension contributions paid by the
Employer. Pension contributions made to a person’s pension are disclosed as part of the
pension benefits disclosure below.
Remuneration of Senior Employees
Total Remuneration for Year
Non-cash
Gross
expenses
salary,
&
Compensation
fees &
Taxable
benefitsfor loss of
Total
Total
allowances Bonuses Expenses
in-kind
office
2014/15 2013/14
David
Jennings

53,057

0

0

0

0

53,057

52,282

Totals

53,057

0

0

0

0

53,057

52,282

Exit Packages
There is a new requirement to disclose details of all staff Exit Packages agreed in the year.
An Exit Package is the value of all termination benefits which include redundancy costs,
pension contributions in respect of added years and any ex gratia and other departure costs.
The SDPA has not agreed any Exit Packages in 2014/15 (2013/14 – £Nil).
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
Notes
The term senior employee means:
1. Any employee who has responsibility for the management of the SDPA to the extent
that the person has the power to direct or control the major activities of the Authority
(including activities involving the expenditure of money), during the year to which the
Report relates, whether solely or collectively with other persons;
2. Who holds a post that is politically restricted by reason of section 2(1) (a), (b) or (c)
of Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (4); or
3. Whose annual remuneration, including any remuneration from a local authority
subsidiary body, is £150,000 or more.
Remuneration of Employees receiving more than £50,000
There is one SDPA employee receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year, falling
into the £50,000 - £54,999 band. As he is a senior employee he is subject to the full
disclosure requirements in the table above.
Pension Benefits
The term pension benefits covers in-year pension contributions for the employee by the
Council and the named person’s accrued pension benefits at the reporting date.
Pension Benefits of Senior Employees
In-year pension
contributions
For year to
31 March
2015

Accrued annual
pension benefits
As at
31 March
2015

For year to
31 March
2014

As at
31 March
2014

Accrued pension Lump
Sum
As at
31 March
2015

As at
31 March
2014

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

£000’s

David
Jennings

7,640

10,090

12,178

11,127

20,614

20,313

Totals

7,640

10,090

12,178

11,127

20,614

20,313

Notes:
All employees working for SDPA are eligible to become members of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS).
The LGPS provides defined benefits on retirement. The pension is based on the member’s
pensionable service (how long he or she has been a member of the LGPS) and his or her
pay. For elected members, pay is based on a “career average” – the aggregate of each
year’s pay (adjusted for inflation) is divided by the total number of years and part years they
have been a member of the LPGS. For officers, pay is based on their final year’s salary. For
most people, for service up to 31 March 2009, the annual pension is calculated by dividing
their pay by 80 (60 for service after 31 March 2009) and multiplying this by their total
membership. Pensions payable are increased annually in line with changes in The Pensions
(Increase) Act 1971 and Section 59 of the Social Security Pension Act 1975.
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REMUNERATION REPORT (continued)
The lump sum, which is automatically paid when the person retires for service up to 31
March 2009, is normally three times his or her annual pension and is tax-free. There is no
automatic lump sum for service after 31 March 2009. Members may opt to give up
(commute) pension for lump sum up to the limit set by the Finance Act 2004.
A Scheme member’s contribution depends on his or her full-time equivalent pay. From 1
April 2009, a five tier contribution system was introduced with contribution from members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. The tiers and rates for 2014-2015 have
increased from the 2013-2014 rates. The tiers and rates are now as follows - up to and
including £20,500 5.5%; above £20,500 and up to £25,000 7.25%; above £25,000 and up to
£34,400 8.5%; above £34,400 and up to £45,800 9.5%; and above £45,800 12%.
The value of the accrued benefits in the above tables has been calculated on the basis of
the age at which the person will first become entitled to receive a full pension on retirement
without reduction on account of its payment at that age; without exercising any option to
commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the effects of
future inflation. The normal retirement age for members of the LGPS is 65.
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as
consequence of their total local government service, and not just their current appointment.
The above explanatory notes provide general information on the Local Government Pension
Scheme and do not override the provisions of the Scheme.

Councillor Peter Argyle
Chairman
Strategic Development Planning
Authority

Alex Stephen
Treasurer

23 September 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE ABERDEEN CITY
AND SHIRE STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY AND THE
ACCOUNTS COMMISSION FOR SCOTLAND
We certify that we have audited the financial statements of the Aberdeen City and Shire
Strategic Development Planning Authority (SDPA) for the year ended 31 March 2015 under
Part VII of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The financial statements comprise the
Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
Balance Sheet, and Cash-Flow Statement, and the related notes 1 to 16. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, and
as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2014/15 (the 2014/15 Code).
This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VII
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with
paragraph 125 of the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for
Scotland, we do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their
individual capacities, or to third parties.
Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Treasurer is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and
fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) as
required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland.
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards
for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment
of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the authority and
have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Treasurer; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (continued)
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view in accordance with applicable law and the 2014/15 Code of the
state of the affairs of the local authority as at 31 March 2015 and of the income and
expenditure the authority for the year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, as interpreted and adapted by the 2014/15 Code; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973, The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the
Local Government in Scotland Act 2003.
Opinion on other prescribed matters
In our opinion:
• the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014; and
• the information given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
• adequate accounting records have not been kept; or
• the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
• the Governance Statement has not been prepared in accordance with Delivering Good
Governance in Local Government; or
• there has been a failure to achieve a prescribed financial objective.
We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

James Boyle, CA (Senior Statutory Auditor) for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Saltire Court
20 Castle Terrace
Edinburgh
EH1 2DB
United Kingdom
23 September 2015
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
EXPENDITURE
Administration Costs:
Includes telephone, printing, stationery, advertising, postage, and training expenses.
Corporate Democratic Core (CDC):
These are costs associated with democratic representation and costs relating to the
corporate management of the SDPA.
INCOME
Requisitions:
Funding received from the constituent authorities.
OTHER
SeRCOP
Service Reporting Code of Practice
CIPFA
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
LASAAC
Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee
IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standard
The Code
The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
FAIR VALUE
Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. For land and
buildings, fair value is the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use.
ECONOMIC COST
The total cost of performing an activity or following a decision or course of action.
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intelligent insight
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stakeholder
confidence

Building trust in
the profession

Partner introduction
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Partner introduction
Financial statement audit
I have pleasure in presenting our final report to the Board for the 2014/15 audit. I would like to draw
your attention to the key messages of this paper:

Conclusions
from our
testing

• The key risks and judgements in the audit process related to:
• Revenue recognition
• Management override of controls
• Future Funding Uncertainty
• Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
• We have identified one factual misstatement during our audit which has been
corrected as detailed in Appendix 1.
• Based on the current status of our audit work, we anticipate issuing an
unmodified audit opinion.

Status of the
audit

• The audit is substantially complete subject to the completion of the following
matters:
• Receipt of signed management of representation letter; and
• Our review of events since 31 March 2015.

Audit quality is
our number one
priority. When
planning our
audit we set the
following audit
quality objectives
for this audit:
© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

A robust challenge
of the key
judgements taken in
the preparation of
the financial
statements.

A strong understanding of
your internal control
environment.
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A well planned and
delivered audit that
raises findings early
with those charged
with governance.

4

Partner introduction (continued)
Public sector audit dimensions
We have commented below on the Audit Scotland impact dimensions with regard to
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA (“SDPA”).

Financial sustainability
Financial sustainability continues to be
one of the most significant challenges
and risks for SDPA. We will continue
to monitor these arrangements.
SDPA has a 4 year budget in place
over which future income and
expenditure are forecasted. Uncertainty
over future levels of funding from local
government is monitored through
budgeting.

Financial Management
The final outturn was an in-year
surplus of £21k against a breakeven
target.
SDPA monitors budgeted and actual
expenditure on a regular basis
throughout the year.

Governance and
Transparency

Best Value (BV)
SDPA has a Strategic Development
Plan in place which was approved by
Scottish Ministers in August 2009.
A performance report is provided on an
annual basis to consider the
achievements of the Authority in the
year.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

SDPA has a Board which meets on a
regular basis to assess the
performance of the Authority against
budget and to determine the risks
affecting the Authority.
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Partner introduction (continued)
Significant risk dashboard
Fraud risk

Controls approach
and findings

Consistency of
judgements with
Deloitte
expectations

Comment

Revenue recognition – Grants and Requisitions
Evaluate design /
implementation of
key controls. No
controls reliance.
No significant
observations.

We have confirmed that the contributions agreed as part of the
budget have been reconciled to the actual amounts received
and appropriately accounted for in the financial statements.

Management override of controls

Evaluate design /
implementation of
key controls. No
controls reliance.
No significant
observations.

We identified no issues with journal entries or other
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial
statements.
Our review of accounting estimates for bias that could result in
material misstatement due to fraud noted no issues. One
adjustment was noted, as detailed in Appendix 1, where the
VAT element of an invoice was incorrectly accrued. This has
been corrected in the final accounts.

Overly prudent, likely to lead to future credit

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Overly optimistic, likely to lead to future debit.
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6

Scope, nature and extent
of audit
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Scope, nature and extent of audit
Our overall responsibility as external auditor of the SDPA is to undertake our audit in accordance
with the principles contained in the Code of Audit Practice issued by Audit Scotland in May 2011.
The special accountabilities that attach to the conduct of public business, and the use of public
money, means that public sector audits must be planned and undertaken from a wider perspective
than in the private sector. This means providing assurance, not only on the financial statements and
associated documents such as governance statements, but providing a view also, where appropriate,
on matters such as regularity (or legality), propriety, performance and use of resources in accordance
with the principles of Best Value and ‘value for money’.
Our core audit work as defined by Audit Scotland comprises:
•

Providing the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements;

•

Providing the annual report on the audit to those charged with governance;

•

Providing reports to management, as appropriate, in respect of the auditor’s corporate
governance responsibilities in the Code (including auditors’ involvement in National Fraud
Initiative (NFI)); and

•

Submitting fraud returns, including nil returns, to Audit Scotland where appropriate.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Significant risks and
critical accounting
judgements
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Revenue recognition
Risk Identified
ISA 240 states that when identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement due to fraud,
the auditor shall, based on a presumption that there are risks of fraud in revenue recognition, evaluate
which types of revenue, revenue transactions or assertions give rise to such risks.
For the Authority we have considered this risk to be around the completeness of requisitions from the
constituent authorities given the significance of these to the organisation.

Total Income
£100,000

Aberdeen City
£50,000

Aberdeenshire
£50,000

Key judgements
We have reviewed the treatment of income in the year to consider whether it is line with IFRS
guidance and the Code. We have obtained a copy of the 2014/15 budget approved by the Authority
detailing the requisitions due from the partner Councils which have been agreed to the amount
recognised by the Authority. We have also agreed the amounts received through the bank account.

Deloitte response
• No issues noted from our review of the treatment of income in the year, which has been accounted
for in line with the Code.
• We have agreed all income received to bank statements and journal entries.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Management override of controls
Risk Identified
International Standards on Auditing requires auditors to identify a presumed risk of management
override of control. This presumed risk cannot be rebutted by the auditor.
This recognises that management within Aberdeenshire Council acting on behalf of the SDPA is in a
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of their ability to directly or indirectly manipulate
accounting records and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise
appear to be operating effectively. The risk of management override of control is present in all entities.
This risk cannot be pinpointed to an account balance or potential error and therefore specific
procedures to respond to the risk of management override of controls should be designed and
performed.

Key judgements
Our audit work is designed to test for instances of management override of controls.

Deloitte response
• No issues noted around journal entries and other adjustments made in the preparation of the
financial statements.
• Our review of accounting estimates for bias that could result in material misstatement due to fraud
noted no issues.
• Retrospective review of management’s judgements and assumptions relating to significant
estimates reflected in last year’s financial statements completed with no issues noted.
•

We have not noted any transactions that appear to be outwith the course of normal business.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.

Page 49

11

Critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation
In the course of our audit of the financial statements, we consider the qualitative aspects of the
financial reporting process, including items that have a significant impact on the relevance,
reliability, comparability, understandability and materiality of the information provided by the
financial statements. Our comments on the quality and acceptability of the accounting policies
and estimates are discussed below.
We have assessed the disclosures based upon our review of the accounts and understanding of
the organisation and the specific risks we identified as part of our planning process. We have not
identified any other critical accounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty that
require to be disclosed. We have performed work as follows against each of these areas:

Future Funding Uncertainty
Management has made certain judgements about transactions involving uncertainty about future
events. Disclosure has been made that there is a degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding
from local government and hence funding for Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA. However, the Treasurer
has determined that the level of uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an indication that the
activities of the Authority might be affected by the need to reduce level of service provision.
We have confirmed that a budget has been agreed for 2015/16 with funding levels in line with
2014/15, and indicative budgets are in place for 2016/17 confirming funding beyond April 2016, and
therefore concur with the Treasurer’s statement.

Defined Benefit Pension Scheme
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA participates in the North East Scotland Pension Fund, which is a multiemployer defined benefit scheme, where the share of the assets and liabilities applicable to each
employer is not identified. This is therefore accounted for on a defined contribution basis as permitted
by IAS 19.
We have reviewed the disclosure within the accounts against the Code and noted that it highlights
Local Government Pension Schemes in relation to the participation of minor non-principal authorities
that prepare their accounts in accordance with the Code (of which Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA is
one) meet the criteria to account for as defined contribution plans.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Financial performance and
outlook
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Financial performance and outlook
Value for money
Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA budgeted a breakeven position for the year to 31 March 2015 with
budgeted income and expenditure of £174,000. The final out-turn was a net underspend of £21,000
which is due to be returned to the constituent authorities.

Overall financial and quality performance
The table below illustrates how the Board’s performance compares to plan and prior year:

2014/15
Budget
£
Gross Expenditure
Income
Net Income

2014/15
Actual
£

2014/15
Variance
£

2015/16
Budget
£

174,000

100,000

74,000

176,000

(174,000)

(121,000)

(53,000)

176,000

Nil

21,000

21,000

Nil

Expenditure is lower than budgeted in 2014/15 largely due to a reduction in staff costs of £43,000,
due to the staffing being one employee lower than required. It is anticipated that an additional
member of staff can be recruited in 2015/16 in order to assist in progressing the programme.
Additionally, contractor costs were £25,000 lower than expected due to data from the Housing
department not being received to allow the work to progress.

Financial Outlook
A 2015/16 budget was approved by the Authority in March 2015. For the purposes of the budget, it
has been assumed that the full complement of dedicated staff will be in place for the year at one
Manager and one Planner. Other costs are expected to remain in line with the 2014/15 forecast, with
contractor costs in the region of £30,000 as work will be completed on Housing Market Area Review
and the Housing Need and Demand Assessment. After this, it is anticipated that this will then drop
until 2018/19 when the next Strategic Development Plan examination commences.
No issues noted from our review of the treatment of income and expenditure in the year, which has
been accounted for in line with the Code.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Governance and
accountability
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Governance and Transparency
Governance arrangements are operating effectively
In accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to consider and formally
report in relation to the following key matters:

Appropriate systems of
internal control are in place

Arrangement for the
prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities
are satisfactory

Arrangements for
maintaining standards of
conduct and the prevention
and detection of corruption
are satisfactory

The Board is effective in
overseeing governance and
performance monitoring

We confirm that we have reviewed the arrangements in each of the four areas and have
identified no issues in this regard.
The Vice Chair changed during the year to Councillor Ramsay Milne from Aberdeen City
Council in order to comply with the constitution of the Authority where the Chair and Vice Chair
will rotate on a 2 yearly cycle.
The Board met on a regular basis during 2014/15 in order to review performance to date, and
to monitor changes from budget.
We are comfortable with the fraud arrangements in place and confirm there have been no
financially significant frauds of which management have made us aware.
Internal Audit services continue to be provided through Aberdeenshire Council’s Chief Internal
Auditor.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Your Annual Report
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Our comments on your annual report
We welcome this opportunity to set out for the Authority our observations on the annual report. We
are required to read the “front half” of your annual report to consider consistency with the financial
statements and any apparent misstatements. Here we summarise our observations on your
response to these areas:
Deloitte response

Management
Commentary

The Management Commentary reflects on those matters companies
are require to disclose under the Companies Act 2006, tailored for local
authorities. This includes description of the principal risks and
uncertainties facing the authority, a review of performance in the year,
a measurement of progress against performance indicators and
commentary on going concern.
We have read the Management Commentary in full in order to ensure
that it is in line with our understanding of the Authority and complies
with the required guidance on Management Commentary. We are
satisfied with the contents of this report.

The Governance Statement reports that the SDPA is in compliance
with the aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code which are set
out within the guidance as being applicable to Authorities.

Governance Statement

Remuneration Report

The format and content of the statement is consistent with the
requirements of the Code and concludes that reasonable assurance
can be placed on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Authority’s
Internal Control System in the year to 31 March 2015. No areas have
been highlighted as requiring improvement, which is consistent with the
findings of our audit..

The remuneration report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
2014, disclosing the remuneration of the senior employee working for
the Authority. The Authority does not make any payments to any
members of the Authority, whether elected Member or otherwise
appointed, by way of salary, enhanced pension benefits or
reimbursement of expenses.
We are satisfied that the remuneration report has been prepared in
accordance with the amendment regulations and is consistent with the
findings of our audit.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Purpose of our report and
responsibility statement
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Purpose of our report and responsibility
statement
Our report is designed to help you meet your governance duties
What we report

What we don’t report

Our report is designed to help the Authority
and Controller of Audit discharge their
governance duties. It also represents one
way in which we fulfil our obligations under
ISA 260 (UK and Ireland) to communicate
with you regarding your oversight of the
financial reporting process and your
governance requirements. Our report
includes:

• As you will be aware, our audit was not
designed to identify all matters that may be
relevant to the Authority.

• Results of our work on key audit
judgements and our observations on the
quality of your Annual Report.
• Other insights we have identified from our
audit.

• Also, there will be further information you
need to discharge your governance
responsibilities, such as matters reported
on by management or by other specialist
advisers.
• Finally, our views on internal controls and
business risk assessment should not be
taken as comprehensive or as an opinion
on effectiveness since they have been
based solely on the audit procedures
performed in the audit of the financial
statements and the other procedures
performed in fulfilling our audit plan.
We welcome the opportunity to discuss our
report with you and receive your feedback.

The scope of our work
• Our observations are developed in the
context of our audit of the financial
statements.
• We described the scope of our work in our
audit plan and the supplementary “briefing
on audit matters” previously circulated to
you.

Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants
Edinburgh
19 August 2015

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Audit adjustments
Summary of uncorrected and corrected misstatements
Uncorrected misstatements
• There have been no uncorrected misstatements noted during the process of our audit work

Corrected misstatements

• A factual misstatement was noted within creditor testing for £750. This error has been adjusted for.
The misstatement occurred due to VAT being incorrectly accrued on an outstanding invoice. We
have tested the entire creditor balance thus this is an isolated error.

Disclosure misstatements
• Auditing standards require us to highlight significant disclosure misstatements to enable the Board
to evaluate the impact of those matters on the financial statements. We have noted no material
disclosure deficiencies in the course of our audit work.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Fraud responsibilities and representations
Responsibilities explained
Responsibilities

Audit work performed

The primary responsibility for the prevention and
detection of fraud rests with management and
those charged with governance, including
establishing and maintaining internal controls
over the reliability of financial reporting,
effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

• In our planning we identified the risk of fraud
in
other
income
recognition
and
management override of controls as a key
audit risk for the Authority.
• During course of our audit, we have had
discussions with management and those
charged with governance.

As auditors, we obtain reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or error.

Required representations
We have asked the Authority to confirm in writing
that you have disclosed to us the results of your
own assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a
result of fraud and that you are not aware of any
fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity.
We have also asked the Authority to confirm in
writing their responsibility for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud and error.

Concerns
• As set out above we have identified the risk of fraud in other income recognition and management
override of controls as a key audit risk for your organisation.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Independence and fees
There are no issues we wish to raise to you

As part of our obligations under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland) and the Code of
Audit Practice issued by Audit Scotland and approved by the Auditor General, we are required to
report to you on the matters listed below:
Independence
confirmation

We confirm that we comply with APB Ethical Standards for Auditors and that, in
our professional judgement, we and, where applicable, all Deloitte network firms
are independent and our objectivity is not compromised.

Fees

Our audit fee for the year has ben agreed at £3,040 (inclusive of VAT) and is
within the indicative fee range set by Audit Scotland. There were no non-audit
services for the period

Non-audit
services

In our opinion there are no inconsistencies between APB Ethical Standards for
Auditors and the Authority’s policy for the supply of non-audit services or of any
apparent breach of that policy. We continue to review our independence and
ensure that appropriate safeguards are in place including, but not limited to, the
rotation of senior partners and professional staff and the involvement of additional
partners and professional staff to carry out reviews of the work performed and to
otherwise advise as necessary.

Relationships

We are required to provide written details of all relationships (including the
provision of non-audit services) between us and the organisation, its board and
senior management and its affiliates, including all services provided by us and the
DTTL network to the audited entity, its board and senior management and its
affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected parties that we
consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our objectivity and independence.
We are not aware of any relationships which are required to be disclosed.

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Events and publications
Our publications to support the Authority.
IAS Plus
The IAS Plus website, maintained by Deloitte, provides the most comprehensive information on the Internet about
international financial reporting. It is aimed at accounting professionals, businesses, financial analysts, standardsetters and regulators, and accounting educators and students. The site, which is totally free of charge, has a broad
array of resources about the International Accounting Standards Board, International Financial Reporting Standards,
and international accounting and auditing in general. It includes:
•
•
•
•
•

Summaries of all IASB standards and interpretations;
Background on all IASB and IFRIC agenda projects plus summaries of all IASB and IFRIC meetings;
Comparisons of IFRSs and various local GAAPs;
Updates on national accounting standards development in around 80 countries and regions throughout the world;
and
Free e-learning modules for each IAS and IFRS – made available at no charge in the public interest. The site is
available to browse at any time; alternatively you can subscribe to e-mail alerts and newsletters by going to
http://www.iasplus.com/subscribe.htm

Finance Business Partnering – A Public Sector View
Deloitte’s research into Finance Business Partnering has analysed the responses of 75 senior Finance
executives from UK headquartered organisations, including 20 public sector organisations across central
government departments, arm’s length bodies and agencies.
The results were as follows:
•

•

•

No Public Sector respondents see Finance as their primary source of insight for decision-making. As the need
to demonstrate and contribute to value for money becomes more important than ever, Public Sector Finance
teams must look to position themselves as a central part of decision-making.
Fifty-three per cent of Public Sector respondents recognise a lack of appropriate skills and behaviours in their
existing teams as a barrier to more effective Business Partnering. This is an issue also felt by the Private
Sector, which creates fierce competition for skills.
Deloitte analysis finds that role definition drives skill demonstration. CFO’s are looking at the wrong problem. It
is not a lack of skills but a lack of role definition that they need to address.,

© 2015 Deloitte LLP. All rights reserved.
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Agenda Item 4

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 23 September 2015
Title: Strategic Transport Fund Update
1

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to update the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic
Development Planning Authority (SDPA) on the adoption of the statutory
Supplementary Guidance on a Strategic Transport Fund (STF) and the
subsequent legal challenge.

2

Background

2.1

Non-statutory Supplementary Planning Guidance has been in force since
March 2012 to seek contributions to addressing the cumulative impact of new
development on the transport network in the Strategic Growth Areas within the
Aberdeen Housing Market Area.

2.2

To date, contributions in excess of £20 million have been agreed in relation to
the STF. This amount excludes agreements that have yet to determine precise
levels of contributions – largely consents granted in principle where there was
insufficient detail to enable a detailed calculation to be made. Final figures for
these applications will not be determined until detailed or ‘Matters Specified in
Condition’ applications are determined. Of the total agreed, Nestrans currently
hold almost £1.7 million in the fund, having been paid by developers – either
upfront or having reached the trigger points in the relevant s75 agreements.

2.3

One s75A application to vary an agreed STF contribution has been received to
date, relating to the Chapelton of Elsick new settlement near Newtonhill,
where the applicant sought a reduction from around £8m to £287,000. The
SDPA responded to the consultation on this application at a special meeting of
February 2015 and the application was unanimously refused by
Aberdeenshire Council on 12 March 2015. The applicant did not appeal the
decision of Aberdeenshire Council to the Scottish Ministers.

2.4

At its last meeting (25 June 2015) the SDPA adopted Supplementary
Guidance: Strategic Transport Fund, in connection with the Aberdeen City and
Shire Strategic Development Plan (2014). This followed consultation at the
turn of the year and a direction from Scottish Ministers to insert a sentence
into the guidance, but otherwise proceed to adoption.
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3

Discussion

3.1

Following adoption of the guidance by the SDPA, Aberdeenshire Council
considered a report on 20 August 2015 and Aberdeen City Council on 27
August 2015, with both councils noting the adoption of the supplementary
guidance and ratifying its use from 28 August 2015.

3.2

The SDPA and Nestrans issued a joint press release on the 28 August to
highlight the new guidance coming into force and the value of the previous
non-statutory guidance in helping to facilitate development in the area while
addressing the cumulative impact of new development on the transport
network.

3.3

However, in the intervening period a legal challenge was lodged at the Court
of Session on 10 August 2015 to the SDPA’s adoption of the guidance. The
challenge is under s238 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 (as amended).

3.4

The challenge was been submitted by the Elsick Development Company Ltd,
the company behind the new settlement at Newtonhill. The basis of the
challenge is that the adoption of the supplementary guidance by the SDPA
was outwith the powers conferred by the Act because it is contrary to Scottish
Government guidance and the consultation process was unlawful. Another
company, Goodgrun Ltd, has also entered the Action in support of Elsick
Development Company Ltd as a ‘co-pursuer’.

3.5

Answers have already been submitted to the original petition within the 21 day
deadline, with a series of procedures likely to be required before the case is
heard before the court. Senior Counsel (Stuart Gale QC) has been appointed
to represent the interests of the SDPA and present its case before the court
when the time comes.

3.6

The SDPA will vigorously defend the case brought against the adoption of the
supplementary guidance, on the basis that all procedural requirements have
been complied with and the Scottish Ministers were content with the guidance
at the point of adoption, it being consistent with the statement of Scottish
Government policy set out in Circular 3/2012.

3.7

The estimated costs to the SDPA of defending the case brought against it is
thought to be in the region of £70k + VAT. However, if the case is lost the
costs to the SDPA are likely to be considerably higher, with the SDPA bearing
a proportion of the appellant’s costs as well.

3.8

In any event, the real risk is to the sums already agreed as contributions to the
STF and the determination of current and future applications if the guidance
was quashed for substantive reasons. This emphasises the importance of this
case to the SDPA and its constituent councils, as well as to the Scottish
Government and the wider use of planning agreements to tackle infrastructure
capacities across the country.
Next Steps
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3.9

While the costs to date have been accommodated within the existing budget,
defending the legal challenge will be expensive. The Budget Monitoring report
on today’s agenda will consider this issue in more detail.

3.10

Although there is no indication of the likely timescale for the case to be heard
and a judgement handed down, it is likely to be towards the end of the year or
early next year that a conclusion is reached to the current action. In the
meantime, although the appellants have made reference to the possibility of
applying for an interim order to suspend the use of the statutory guidance, this
has not been pursued to date and the guidance remains in force.

3.11

Unless and until the adoption of the guidance is suspended or quashed,
contributions to the strategic Transport Fund will continue to be sought in the
normal way. To do otherwise would put a brake on the determination of
planning applications in the area covered by the guidance which would not be
in the interests of the development industry, the councils or the wider economy
of the area.

4

Recommendations

4.1

It is recommended that the SDPA:
a) note the decisions of both councils to recognise the adoption of the
supplementary guidance and ratify its use;
b) note the coming into force of the supplementary guidance on 28 August
2015.
c) note the legal challenge raised at the Court of Session by the Elsick
Development Company Ltd and Goodgrum Ltd to the SDPA’s adoption of
the Supplementary Guidance: Strategic Transport Fund; and
d) consider the budgetary implications of the legal challenge under the
‘Budget Monitoring’ report later on the agenda.

David Jennings, Strategic Development Plan Manager, Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA

Gale Beattie
Planning & Environment Manager
Aberdeen City Council

Robert Gray
Head of Planning and Building Standards
Aberdeenshire Council

Report prepared by:- David Jennings, SDP Manager
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Agenda Item 5

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 23 September 2015
Title: SDPA Budget Monitoring position as at 31 August 2015
1

Purpose of Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Strategic Development Planning Authority
(SDPA) to note the budget monitoring and forecast position for 2015/16 as at 31
August 2015 and to consider and agree how to deal with any legal fees falling
due in relation to a legal challenge that has been lodged.
2

Background

2.1 The budget for the SDPA was considered at the meeting on 25 March 2015.
3

Proposal

3.1 The budget monitoring report showing expenditure to the end of August and
forecast outturn for 2015/16 is attached as Appendix 1 to this report for
Members’ consideration.
3.2 The Authority will note that there has been little expenditure other than staff
costs so far this year, but this is in line with expectations and there is nothing
untoward indicated in the monitoring to date.
3.3 As detailed in the report on the Strategic Transport Fund (STF) Update, a legal
challenge has been lodged at the Court of Session on 10 August 2015 to the
SDPA’s adoption of the statutory supplementary guidance.
3.4 This will give rise to legal fees which, depending on the outcome of the legal
challenge, may or may not have to be paid by the SDPA. The budget that was
approved in March does not include a provision for this. It was prepared on the
basis that the level of contribution from each partner council would remain static
at £69k each, over the next four years to 2018/19, by utilising reserves held by
SDPA of £104k.
3.5 It is now proposed that should the need arise, these reserves be used to meet
any legal costs. If this were to be required, this would impact on future years’
budgets, as an increase in contributions from partners would be necessary.
3.6 The estimated costs to the SDPA of defending the case brought against it is
thought to be in the region of £70k + VAT. However, if the case is lost the costs
to the SDPA are likely to be considerably higher, with the SDPA bearing a
proportion of the appellant’s costs as well and conversely, if the case is won the
costs could be considerably less.
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3.7 It is not known how long it will take for this to be heard and decided by the
courts. It may well be that this will continue into next financial year, however, it
is important to identify an agreed course of action now of how any legal fees
falling due will be dealt with and to identify a source of funds to call upon,
should the need arise.
3.8 If final legal costs were above the total held within SDPA’s reserves then the
Authority would look to request additional funding from both partner council’s on
an equal basis to cover any shortfall.
4

Recommendations

4.1 It is recommended that the Authority:
a) notes the budget monitoring position and forecast outturn as at 31 August
2015.
b) agree to the use of reserves held to cover legal costs of the challenge to the
SDPA’s adoption of the statutory supplementary guidance; and
c) advise the partner councils of the intention to use reserves to cover these
legal costs, should this be required, which may give rise to an increase in
the contributions required from each council, on an equal share basis, in
this or future years.

Alex Stephen
Treasurer
09 September 2015

2

Page 70

REVISED
BUDGET
2015/16
£'000

ACTUAL
2014/15
£'000

1
2
3
4

Staff Costs
Salaries & Wages
Superannuation
National Insurance
Other Staff Costs

5

Premises Costs
Other Property Costs

6
7
8
9
10

Administration Costs
Printing, Stationery & Postages
Telephone Costs
Course Expenses
Advertising & Promotions
Other Administration Costs

Transport Costs
11 Travel & Subsistence

12
13
14
15
16

Supplies & Services
Purchase of Equipment
Purchase of Materials
Other Supplies & Services
Consultant Fees
Work Done by Outside Contractor

Gross Expenditure
Income
17 Aberdeen City Council
18 Aberdeenshire Council
19 Other Income
Total Income
Net Expenditure

ACTUAL
TO
31-Aug-2015
£'000

%

REVISED
FORECAST
2015/16
£'000

53
8
5
0
66

88
16
7
0
111

22
4
2
0
28

25.1%
27.0%
29.0%
0.0%
25.6%

88
16
7
0
111

0
0

1
1

0
0

0.0%
0.0%

1
1

5
0
1
7
2
16

10
1
2
4
1
18

0
0
0
0
0
1

0.0%
2.4%
11.3%
0.0%
49.1%
4.1%

10
1
2
4
1
18

1
1

2
2

0
0

8.1%
8.1%

2
2

0
0
0
13
5
18

1
1
2
5
30
39

0
0
0
2
0
2

0.0%
0.0%
1.5%
30.0%
0.0%
3.9%

1
1
2
5
30
39

100

171

31

18.0%

171

(69)
(52)
(0)

(69)
(69)
(33)

(16)
(16)
0

22.6%
22.6%
0.0%

(69)
(69)
(33)

(121)

(171)

(31)

18.3%

(171)

(21)

0

(0)

0.0%

0

NOTES

1

1

Notes: 1 A legal challenge has been lodged at the Court of Session to the statutory supplementary guidance for
the Strategic Transport Fund. Any legal fees due to be paid by SDPA will be shown under Other Supplies &
Services, with a corresponding amount released from reserves and shown under Other Income. At present this
has been classed as a contingent liability and so has not been shown in the forecast figures, as at this stage it is
not known with any certainty what the likely liability will be. The position will be reviewed in future month's
monitoring.
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Agenda Item 6

SDPA Bulletin – September 2015
1

Planning Reform announced by Cabinet Secretary

1.1 The Cabinet Secretary for Social Justice, Communities & Pensioners’ Rights,
Alex Neil MSP, announced in early June that the Scottish Government would be
commencing a national discussion on the next round of planning reform later in
the year, focused on development planning and housing delivery. A link is
provided below to the press release announcing the discussion:
http://news.scotland.gov.uk/News/Scottish-Government-signals-planning-modernisation-19c7.aspx

1.2 Following the June meeting of the SDPA, the Chair wrote to the Cabinet
Secretary, with the letter and response reproduced at Appendices 1 and 2.
1.3 More recently, the Scottish Government’s ‘Programme for Government’ was
published on 1 September 2015, with the First Minister announcing to the
Scottish Parliament that:
“We will undertake a root and branch review of the planning system with a
particular emphasis on increasing the delivery of high quality housing
developments”.
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/parliamentarybusiness/report.aspx?r=10054&mode=pdf (Col14)

1.4 The Programme for Government’ went on to provide more detail:
“PLANNING SYSTEM AND HOUSING
We will review the operation of the planning system in Scotland, identifying the
scope for further reform with a focus on delivering a quicker, more accessible
and efficient planning process, in particular increasing delivery of high quality
housing developments. Our aims are to:
• Ensure that planning realises its full potential, unlocking land and sites,
supporting more quality housing across all tenures and delivering the
infrastructure required to support development.
• Streamline, simplify and improve current systems and remove unnecessary
blockages in the decision-making process.
• Ensure that communities are more engaged in the process.
• Continue to meet our statutory and international obligations in protecting and
enhancing Scotland’s nature and environment.”
http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0048/00484439.pdf (p71)
1.5 No further details of the process for the review are available to date, although it
is thought that more detail is likely to be available by the time the SDPA meet.
Reports will be presented to the SDPA later in the year when there is greater
clarify around what this national discussion is likely to mean in practice and give
Members the opportunity to take part in the discussion.
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2

Planning for Infrastructure

2.1 The Scottish Government has recently published research on the delivery of
infrastructure through the planning system. The SDPA’s ‘Strategic Transport
Fund’ is included as a case study within the research, with its focus on crossboundary infrastructure delivery.
2.2 The research concludes with 35 recommendations covering the planning
system generally, action programmes, infrastructure costing / funding,
cumulative impacts, s75 agreements and development viability.
2.3 The publication of the research is to be welcomed as it represents the fulfilment
of an action included in the Action Programme associated with National
Planning Framework 3. This was included (at least in part) in response to
concerns raised by the SDPA during its consideration by the Scottish Parliament
in early 2014.
2.4 While the detail of the research and its recommendations will take some time to
assess, it represents an important contribution to the process of better aligning
new development with the delivery of infrastructure at the national, regional,
sub-regional and local levels.
2.5 A link to the Scottish Government infrastructure research is provided below, with
the Executive Summary of the research reproduced in Appendix 3.
http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0048/00483680.pdf

2.6 The Cabinet Secretary has announced that new advice to improve planning for
infrastructure and housing across Scotland is set to be unveiled towards the end
of the year. New advice in this area, building on the research above, is urgently
needed and officers will seek to contribute to this as opportunities are available.

3

Local Development Plans Update

3.1 Local Development Plans (LDPs) were adopted by both Aberdeen City Council
and Aberdeenshire Council during 2012. Both councils have published
timetables for the preparation of replacement plans over the next two years and
completed their ‘Proposed Plan’ consultation stages. These plans are being
prepared to be consistent with the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic
Development Plan (2014).
3.2 Both Proposed LDPs were published in late March 2015, with only a week
between the two publication dates. In terms of responses to the two plans,
Aberdeenshire received 897 responses while Aberdeen City received 186
responses.
3.3 Both councils are now working towards the submission of the plans for
Examination later in the year. Aberdeen City Council intend taking their plan to
the Housing, Communities and Infrastructure Committee on 27 October 2015,
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with Aberdeenshire Council doing the same at the Infrastructure Services
Committee on 26 November 2015.
3.4 Both plans are therefore likely to be submitted for Examination by the end of the
year, with adoption likely before the end of 2016.

4

Planning applications of strategic importance

4.1 Since the last meeting of the SDPA, one consultation response has been
submitted by the SDPA in relation to a planning application in Aberdeenshire
(APP/2015/2520). This related to the application by SHE Transmission for a
time extension to its existing permission for an extension to its electricity
substation at Leylodge near Kintore. This development is required to enable the
upgrading of its 275kV transmission line to 400kV, running from the border with
Moray in the north to the border with Angus in the south. As the application is
just for a time extension, it raised no additional strategic issues. The SDPA
responded to the initial application in 2012 (APP/2012/2133) in light of its status
as a proposal in the then structure plan and a ‘National Development’ in
National Planning Framework 2.
4.2 The application for planning permission for onshore works associated with the
NorthConnect electricity interconnector to Norway on a site just south of
Peterhead was considered by Aberdeenshire Council last month. This proposed
development has been highlighted by the SDPA over a number of years and is
a proposal within the current Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development
Plan (2014) as well as being a ‘National Development’ under National Planning
Framework 3 (NPF3). The SDPA responded to the application (APP/2015/1121)
in May 2015, with the response reported to the June 2015 meeting of the SDPA.
4.3 Aberdeenshire Council unanimously approved the application from
NorthConnect at its meeting of 27 August 2015. The SDPA issued a press
release welcoming the approval and indicating a willingness to continue to work
with the applicant to see regulatory hurdles removed to its development over the
next few years.
4.4 Aberdeen City Council are soon to consult on a Development Framework in
relation to the development of Aberdeen Harbour - another ‘National
Development’ under NPF3 and a highlighted proposal within the Strategic
Development Plan. A Proposal of Application Notice was also submitted to
Aberdeen City Council by the Harbour Board in July, with community
consultation expected during September. A formal planning application is
expected to be submitted in the autumn, in parallel with applications for a
Marine Licence and a Harbour Revision Order. A promotional video for the
proposals is available - https://vimeo.com/128354457 (May 2015).

5

SDPA Website Statistics

5.1 The SDPA website (www.aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk) has been
operational since late 2008 and continues to provide a vital platform for making
information available on the work of the SDPA.
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5.2 Figure 1 below provides summary statistics for traffic on the website since April
2010.
Figure 1: SDPA website statistics 2010/11 – 2014/15
Visits
Unique Visitors
% New Visitors
Pageviews
Pages per session
Time

2010/11
7,054
3,721
49.8%
25,648
3.6
02:45

2011/12
7,201
4,168
54.1%
24,735
3.4
03:00

2012/13
7,812
4,520
54.3%
24,271
3.1
02:20

2013/14
7,959
5,077
59.9%
23,200
2.9
2.28

2014/15
7,280
4,796
62.7%
20,968
2.9
02:12

5.3 The website continues to be visited over 7,000 times a year. Figures for 2012/13
and 2013/14 were higher, reflecting the key stages in the preparation of the
Strategic Development Plan during that period.
5.4 A comprehensive review of the site has taken place over the summer, with
action being taken over the next few months to ensure it remains up-to-date and
relevant.

6

Planning Performance Report

6.1 The SDPA’s Planning Performance Report was submitted to the Scottish
Government by the end of July deadline and it is anticipated that the
assessment will be reported to the next meeting of the SDPA.
6.2 In the meantime, the four Strategic Development Planning Authorities in
Scotland have formed a benchmarking group to reflect on areas of good
practice that can be shared and areas of common weakness where joint action
could be the most efficient means of improvement. This mirrors the
benchmarking groups used by the Local Planning Authorities to facilitate
improvement.

7

Housing Market Activity

7.1 This section provides an update on activity within the Aberdeen City and Shire
housing market. It combines data from the Scottish Government (Housing
Statistics for Scotland), Registers of Scotland (Monthly Residential Property
Market Statistics) and the 2015 Housing Land Audit.
7.2 It can be seen (Figure 2) that the trend of Aberdeen City and Shire accounting
for an increasing percentage of the Scottish residential property market (by both
number of transactions and value) peaked in late 2013. It now accounts for
15.4% of the value of the Scottish housing market and 11.4% of transactions
(compared to 9% of Scotland’s population and households).
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Figure 2: Aberdeen City & Shire as a percentage of the Scottish residential
property market
18%
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14%
12%
10%
8%
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Jan-04 Jan-05 Jan-06 Jan-07 Jan-08 Jan-09 Jan-10 Jan-11 Jan-12 Jan-13 Jan-14 Jan-15 Jan-16 Jan-17

Source: Monthly Residential Property Data, Registers of Scotland

7.3 It can be seen from Figure 3 that transaction have fallen slightly since the start
of 2014 and are still lower than before the recession, although they have
recovered more than the figures for Scotland as a whole.
Figure 3: Annualised residential property transactions (2004 – 2015)
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Source: Monthly Residential Property Data, Registers of Scotland

7.4 It can be seen from Figure 4 that prices have risen since 2009, although at a
lower rate than prior to the recession. This is shown more clearly in Figure 5
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which smoothes out the effects of seasonal fluctuations and shows that in the
year to July 2015 the average house prices stood at £222,326, around £60,000
more than the Scottish average. The impact of the new Land and Buildings
Transaction Tax on average transaction prices can be seen in early 2015, with
more expensive sales being brought forward to avoid the higher tax rates..
Figure 4: Average monthly house prices (2003 – 2015)
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Source: Monthly Residential Property Data, Registers of Scotland

Figure 5: Average annualised house prices (2004 – 2015)
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7.5 Figure 6 shows annual housing completions in Aberdeen City and Shire since
1981. Completions have varied considerably over this period but have risen for
the last few years since bottoming out in 2010. At 1,966 new homes built last
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year in Aberdeen City and Shire, completions are still below the long-term
average of 2,200 a year. However, the three other city regions and Scotland as
a whole lag considerably behind in terms of returning to pre-recession levels of
house building.
7.6 Anticipated completions over the next five years are due to increase
considerably, reaching 3,000 per year by 2016. This reflects the recent relative
strength of the local economy as well as the availability of land released through
the strategic and local development plans.
Figure 6: House building in Aberdeen City and Shire (1981 – 2014 and beyond)

New House Building in Aberdeen City and Shire
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Source: Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Land Audit

7.7 Whether this rate of housebuilding is achieved over the next few years will
depend on the strength of the local housing market given the fall in the price of
oil and consequent job losses in the oil and gas and related sectors.
7.8 If Aberdeen City and Shire were performing according to the Scottish average,
9% of housing completions would take place in this area. It can be seen from
Figure 7 that private sector house building has been performing significantly
better than the picture in Scotland as a whole, with 15.6% of the Scottish total.
However, construction in the social sector (by councils and housing
associations) has performed significantly worse, with just 5.3% of Scottish social
sector house completions taking place in Aberdeen City and Shire last year.
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Figure 7: Annual private and social sector house building rates in Aberdeen City
and Shire compared to Scotland as a whole (2000 – 2014)

Source: Housing Statistics for Scotland, Scottish Government

7.9 Figure 8 below presents data relating to house building rates and the
percentage of these that were social housing for each local authority in Scotland
in 2014. Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire are both labelled, along with Dundee
(D), Edinburgh (E) and Glasgow (G). Aberdeen City and Shire as a whole is
also shown, along with the trajectory targeted in the SDP (household growth,
3000 new homes built per year and 25% affordable housing).
Figure 8: House Building Rates in Scottish Local Authorities (2014)
Affordable Housing

25%
10%

Aberdeen City and Shire
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7.10 It can be seen that only Shetland and Midlothian had higher house building
rates than Aberdeenshire in 2014, while growth in Shetland was heavily reliant
on social sector completions (48%). It can also be seen that it is an increase in
house building rates in Aberdeen City (and an increase in social sector
completions) that will required to meet SDP targets. Higher house building rates
in Aberdeen City are anticipated in the 2015 Housing Land Audit, although
increasing the share of social sector completions is more challenging.
7.11 The Housing Land Audit 2015 was reported to the last meeting of the SDPA
(June 2015), identifying a healthy supply of housing land over the coming years.
Figures 9 and 10 below present the expected housing completions over the next
5 years (on sites of 5 or more units) in the form of heat maps. These indicate
where the greatest concentration of house building is likely to occur – the hotter
the colour, the more new homes are anticipated. In Aberdeen City, the greatest
concentrations are around Countesswells and Loirston, while in Aberdeenshire
it is at Chapelton and Inverurie.
Figure 9: Heat map of house building in Aberdeen City (2015-2019)

Source: Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Land Audit 2015
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Figure 10: Heat map of house building in Aberdeenshire (2015-2019)

Source: Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Land Audit 2015

7.12 Figure 11 shows projected completions compared to the plan requirement.
Figure 11: Projected House Completions to 2020 against Plan Requirements
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Source: Housing Land Audit 2015 and Strategic Development Plan (2014)
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7.13 It can be seen that, while currently still below the requirement of the plan, new
house completions are anticipated to be above target this year and every year
looking forward, even exceeding the aspiration of the plan. This reflects the
availability of housing land and the intentions of the house building industry at
the base date of the Audit (1 January 2015). However, achieving these levels
will depend on factors external to the SDP itself.
7.14 Paragraph 4.27 of the Strategic Development Plan highlights the importance of
considering a range of contextual factors as being likely to influence the delivery
of the plan. Figure 12 shows the Bank of England Base Rates since 1973,
highlighting that, since the financial crisis of 2008/09, the rate has been at a
historic low of just 0.5%.
Figures 12: Bank of England Base Rates
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Figure 13: Base Rate Forecast by the Office for Budget Responsibility
6
5
3
2
1
Q1 2021

Q1 2020

Q1 2019

Q1 2018

Q1 2017

Q1 2016

Q1 2015

Q1 2014

Q1 2013

Q1 2012

Q1 2011

Q1 2010

Q1 2009

Q1 2008

0
Q1 2007

Base Rate - %

4

Source: Office for Budget Responsibility (http://budgetresponsibility.org.uk/economic-fiscal-outlook-july-2015)

7.15 The July forecast by the Office for Budget Responsibility (Figure 13) currently
expects the rate to start rising in early 2016 and reaching 2% by mid-2019. This
will increase the cost of borrowing for both households and businesses but
would still be at historically low levels.
7.16 The price of oil is another factor which has a significant impact on the local
economy, with well-publicised falls in the price over the last 12 months. Figure
14 shows the spot price for Brent Crude since 1987. At less than $50 a barrel,
prices have only rarely been this low over the last decade – and then only for a
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very limited period. The current price is the result of a range of factors but
fundamentally a massive over-supply of oil and weak growth in demand. The
International Energy Authority expects the demand / supply adjustment process
to extend well into 2016.
Figure 14: Oil Prices since 1987 (Brent Crude Spot Price)
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Source: US Energy Information Administration (http://www.eia.gov/dnav/pet/hist/LeafHandler.ashx?n=PET&s=RBRTE&f=W)

7.17 The strength of the economy generally across the UK can be measured by
Gross Domestic Product (GDP). Figure 15 below shows the Office for Budget
Responsibility’s forecast for GDP growth over the next 5 years.
7.18 It can be seen that growth is expected to moderate over the next few years but
remain above 2% over the period to 2020, not dissimilar to growth rates
experienced before the recession of 2008/09.
Figure 15: Forecast UK Growth in GDP to 2020
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7.19 A number of key messages can be drawn from the information presented
above:
a) The growth in residential property transactions over recent years has tailed
off over the past year and still remains below pre-recessionary levels.
b) Average house prices continue to rise. The gap between the average price
in Aberdeen City and Shire and Scotland as a whole now stands at £57,409
or 35%.
c) House completions have picked up significantly since the low-point of 2010
and are anticipated to increase further over the next three years to the levels
targeted in the strategic development plan.
d) Private sector house completions have performed strongly when compared
to Scotland as a whole over recent years, although the social sector has
lagged some way behind the Scottish average. This highlights the very real
challenges of delivering affordable housing in this area.
e) Borrowing costs are still at historically low levels, although there are
indications that these are likely to rise over the next 6-12 months.
f) The price of oil has fallen significantly over the past year which is having,
and is likely to continue to have, a significant impact on the economy locally
– including impacts on the housing market.
g) The UK economy as a whole has grown strongly over the last few years and
is set to continue to grow at over 2% for the next few years.

8

Employment and Unemployment

8.1 The latest figures released for the claimants of Job Seekers Allowance are
presented in Figure 16 below for July 2015. It can be seem that both Aberdeen
City and Aberdeenshire continue to have among the lowest levels of
unemployment in Scotland, well below the Scottish and UK averages.
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Figure 16: Job Seekers Allowance Claimants in Scottish LAs (July 2015)
Job Seekers Allowance
Claimants (August 2015)

Percentage
(of 16-64 yr old population)

62
89

0.5%
0.6%

Aberdeenshire

1,268

0.8%

Perth & Kinross
East Renfrewshire
Moray
East Dunbartonshire

1,053
713
784
876

1.2%
1.3%
1.3%
1.3%

Aberdeen City

2,299

1.4%

Highland
Stirling
Argyll & Bute
Scottish Borders
Edinburgh, City of
East Lothian
Midlothian
West Lothian
Angus
Dumfries & Galloway

2,140
873
846
1,092
5,436
1,088
940
2,124
1,336
1,737

1.5%
1.5%
1.6%
1.6%
1.6%
1.7%
1.8%
1.8%
1.9%
1.9%

786,330

1.9%

339
2,288

2.0%
2.3%

80,487

2.3%

1,679
5,207
880
6,295
3,107
6,871
1,697
14,218
3,543
2,831
2,233
3,563

2.4%
2.6%
2.7%
2.7%
2.8%
3.1%
3.3%
3.4%
3.6%
3.6%
3.8%
4.2%

Orkney Islands
Shetland Islands

UNITED KINGDOM
Eilean Siar
Falkirk

SCOTLAND
South Ayrshire
South Lanarkshire
Clackmannanshire
Fife
Renfrewshire
North Lanarkshire
Inverclyde
Glasgow City
Dundee City
East Ayrshire
West Dunbartonshire
North Ayrshire

Source: Regional Labour Market Statistics, Office for National Statistics

8.2 However, there has been a 44% increase in claimants in the area since
December 2014 when the level was 960 (0.6%) in Aberdeenshire and 1,523
(1.0%) in Aberdeen City.
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9

Housing and Stations

9.1 Route Utilisation Strategies (RUSs) seek to balance supply and demand and set
out our longer term vision for improvements across the rail network. They do
this by considering existing capacity, infrastructure capability and train
operations, followed by forecasting future demand and providing
recommendations as to how this should best be accommodated. Network Rail
are now preparing an update to the current RUS (dating from June 2011), with
publication due in summer 2016.
9.2 Given that the previous study significantly underestimated the growth of rail
transport in Aberdeen City and Shire, Nestrans has been leading on work to
demonstrate to Network Rail the potential for continued growth in rail travel in
the area. This is important as it is used as a base from which to put together
business cases for rail infrastructure, including new stations on the current lines
into and out of Aberdeen and any potential expansion of the network.
9.3 The SDPA and both councils have carried out an analysis of the 2015 Housing
Land Audit and found that 50% of new homes programmed for the next 8 years
are within 5km of an existing or proposed (Kintore) railway station. This builds
on the monitoring reported last year which found that 53% of the population of
Aberdeen City and Shire currently live within the same 5km radius, although that
analysis excluded the current population of Kintore (see Figure 17 below).
Figure 17: Population living within 1.6km and 5km of a railway station in
Aberdeen City and Shire (2009 - 2012)
2009
2012
% change
Station
1.6km 5km
1.6km
5km
1.6km
5km
Aberdeen
46,557 165,390
50,240 176,718
8
7
Dyce
5,541
22,691
5,852
23,093
6
2
Huntly
4,536
5,169
4,481
5,417
-1
5
Insch
2,203
3,859
2,468
4,216
12
9
Inverurie
8,622
12,869
9,558
14,306
11
11
Laurencekirk
2,725
3,424
3,034
3,816
11
11
Portlethen
7,767
13,872
8,231
14,830
6
7
Stonehaven
11,045
11,664
11,396
12,036
3
3
Total
88,996 238,938
95,259 254,431
7
6
% of regional
population
19%
52%
20%
53%
1%
1%
Source: Strategic Development Plan Monitoring Report (2014)

9.4 Over the four year period 2008/09 to 2012/13, there has been a 55% increase in
rail journeys within the SDP area (1.5 million in 2012/13) and a 38% increase in
all rail journeys to and from the area (5 million in 2012/13). This is significantly
higher than the increase for Scotland as a whole (12%).
9.5 This information has been supplemented by national projections which suggest
that Aberdeen City and Shire could be the fastest growing city region in
Scotland over the next 25 years.
9.6 This evidence has been submitted to Transport Scotland and Network Rail to
assist in their preparation of the Scotland Route Study over the next 12 months.
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10 Children’s Quality of Life Survey
10.1 At the end of August, the Bank of Scotland published a quality of life survey
focused on the lives of children. The survey used 10 indicators to come up with
the overall ranking covering issues such as class size, educational attainment,
education spend per pupil, traffic flows, broadband speeds, personal wellbeing
and employment rates.
10.2 Figure 18 below presents the top 20 ranked local authorities in Scotland, also
showing their ranking within Great Britain. It can be seen that Aberdeenshire
was the highest placed mainland council area in Scotland, also coming in the
top 20 in Great Britain (out of 377).
Figure 18: Children’s Quality of Life Ranking
Scottish Ranking 2015
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Local Authority
Orkney Islands
Shetland Islands
Western Isles
Aberdeenshire
Highland
Perth & Kinross
Scottish Borders
Argyll & Bute
Dumfries & Galloway
Stirling
East Renfrewshire
Moray
Aberdeen City
West Lothian
East Dunbartonshire
Midlothian
Angus
South Lanarkshire
East Lothian
Fife

GB Ranking 2015
1
2
3
20
29
39
54
60
71
73
81
119
124
129
134
146
153
181
186
187
Source: Bank of Scotland

http://www.lloydsbankinggroup.com/globalassets/documents/media/press-releases/bank-ofscotland/the-highlands-and-islands-are-the-best-places-to-bring-up-children.pdf

10.3 In spite of a potential bias towards rural areas in the factors used to come up
with the ranking, Aberdeen is the only city authority within the top 20, with
Glasgow, Edinburgh and Dundee all failing to get into the top 250 in the UK or
the top 25 in Scotland.
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11 Marine Planning Circular
11.1 In June 2015 the Scottish Government published “Circular 1/2015: The
relationship between the statutory land use planning system and marine
planning and licensing”. The Circular explains the relationship between the
marine and terrestrial planning systems as well as related licensing and
consenting regimes, including the overlap of responsibility in the intertidal zone.
11.2 It stresses the importance of alignment between marine and terrestrial plans at
both the national and regional level - with liaison, collaboration and consultation
between marine and terrestrial planning authorities being essential.
11.3 A total of 11 Regional Marine Planning Partnerships will be formed over the next
few years around Scotland to take forward the preparation of Regional Marine
Plans. These will be prepared by the partnerships but approved by Scottish
Ministers. The boundaries of the 11 regions were established by the Scottish
Marine Regions Order 2015 (see Figure 19 below).
Figure 19: Illustrative Map of Scottish Marine Regions
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11.4 The ‘North East’ and ‘Moray Firth’ regions are adjacent to the SDP area,
although the ‘Forth and Tay’ region is also of relevance to the SDP area as it
comes as far north as the boundary between Aberdeenshire and Angus south of
St Cyrus.
11.5 There is no indication at the current time as to when or how the Marine Planning
Partnerships in this area will be formed, or the timescales within which the
Regional Marine Plans will be prepared. In the interim, the National Marine Plan,
published by the Scottish Government in March 2015 will be the relevant plan to
which the next strategic development plan will need to be aligned.
11.6 The four SDPAs have been engaging with Marine Scotland at a national level
over the last year on issues relating to the interaction between marine and
terrestrial planning as well as the nature and status of Regional Marine Planning
Partnerships. It is anticipated that this engagement will continue over the
months ahead until there is more clarity about their role, status and timetables.
Circular 1/2015: http://www.gov.scot/Resource/0047/00479384.pdf
The Scottish Marine Regions Order 2015:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ssi/2015/193/pdfs/ssi_20150193_en.pdf
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Alex Neil MSP
Cabinet Secretary for Social Justice, Communities and Pensioners’ Rights
Scottish Government
Edinburgh
[sent by email only – scottish.ministers@scotland.gsi.gov.uk]
3 July 2015
Dear Mr Neil,
Next Round of Planning Reform
At the meeting of the Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Planning Authority last
week it was agreed that I should write to you in light of your recent announcement of further
planning reform.
Last week’s meeting was a significant one in that the SDPA’s Planning Performance Report for
2014/15 was considered and approved – once again highlighting an up-to-date development
plan. We also agreed the 2015 Housing Land Audit and adopted statutory supplementary
guidance on a ‘Strategic Transport Fund’. The Bulletin at the end of the agenda made reference
to your announcement regarding a national discussion focused on development planning,
housing delivery and infrastructure. We welcome that announcement and would wish to
contribute positively to your considerations.
Aberdeen City and Shire has a fully up-to-date development plan, with the SDP approved in
March 2014 and the two LDPs adopted in early 2012. Work to replace the two LDPs is well
under way, with consultation on the two Proposed LDPs having recently finished. Both plans will
be submitted for examination later this year and adopted next year – well before the five year
deadline. Work is also underway on the review of the SDP, with a Main Issues Report due out
next year. I believe that we are the only city region which can claim a fully up-to-date
development plan, although other parts of the country are starting to catch up. This
demonstrates the commitment locally to an up-to-date development plan and a plan-led system.
The Aberdeen City and Shire Housing Land Audit 2015 continues to demonstrate a very healthy
housing land supply across the area, with a generous supply of effective housing land for many
years to come. Housing completions in 2014 were just 10% below the pre-recession average for
the area, with completions this year expected to exceed the average by over 20%. While this
does (in part) highlight the different economic climate in the area compared with the rest of
Scotland since 2008, it also reflects the generous provision of housing land made in the area
since the Aberdeen City and Shire Structure Plan (2009). That plan marked a once in a
generation step-change in the provision of land for both housing and employment purposes.
Aberdeen City and Shire will benefit from some significant infrastructure spending over the next
few years, including the Aberdeen Western Peripheral Route and the Aberdeen-Inverness rail
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improvements. However, this will not go very far in terms of accommodating new development
because of the dearth of new infrastructure over the last 20-30 years. We have worked hard
with Transport Scotland and both councils in particular over the last few years to develop an
innovative mechanism of mitigating the cumulative impact of new development in and around
Aberdeen. I was very pleased that your officials engaged positively in this and allowed us to
adopt the Strategic Transport Fund supplementary guidance last week. The mechanism has
already won the ‘Most Innovative Transport Project of the Year’ at the 2013 Scottish Transport
Awards and has secured contributions of around £20m since it came into force (on a nonstatutory basis) three years ago. We look forward to starting to deliver the transport
improvements required by the new development over the next few years. However, the current
policy context often makes it more challenging, costly and risky to deliver the infrastructure
needed to allow development to proceed than it needs to be.
With the benefits of significant growth come very real challenges of delivering the required
infrastructure. This is a point made in our response to the Scottish Parliament on National
Planning Framework 3 (NPF3), a response which was jointly submitted by the SDPA, Nestrans
(the Regional Transport Partnership), the two councils and the Aberdeen and Grampian
Chamber of Commerce. We were very clear that if NPF identifies areas for significant levels of
growth (as NPF3 did for our area) it also needs to consider what needs to be done at a strategic
level to enable this to happen. Just as a development plan needs to consider this issue at a
more detailed level, the Scottish Government also needs to align its priorities and infrastructure
investment to remove barriers to growth. I hope this can be a more fruitful element in the
preparation of the next NPF over the next few years.
We welcome the research currently being undertaken for the Government by a consortium led
by Ryden and look forward to seeing the results of that upon publication. What is clear,
however, is that action is required and in this context we welcome the opportunities offered by
the review and forthcoming guidance.
While the challenges currently facing the Aberdeen City and Shire economy are very real, we
are keen to ensure that the area continues to be one of economic dynamism which punches
significantly above its weight on a national and international stage. To enable this, infrastructure
and the delivery of development are key.
While there is always scope for improvements, what is clear is that the reforms of a decade ago
can be made to work effectively, as demonstrated in this area.
We look forward to engaging with you and your officials over the coming months in advance of
and during the national discussion planned for later in the year. There is the potential for a
fruitful discussion on these matters and we will seek to play a constructive role in the
conversation.
Yours sincerely,

Cllr Peter Argyle
Chair, Aberdeen City and Shire SDPA
team@aberdeencityandshire-sdpa.gov.uk
cc John McNairney, Chief Planner, Scottish Government
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Executive Summary
The Scottish Government appointed Ryden, with WSP and Brodies, to deliver the
Planning for Infrastructure Research Project. The primary aim was to identify and
review existing and emerging practice in the delivery of infrastructure to enable
development through the planning system in Scotland. The five main objectives were
to:
x
x

x
x
x

Establish the current position in terms of differing existing and emerging
approaches to infrastructure delivery in the planning system in Scotland;
Identify the barriers, challenges and opportunities to infrastructure delivery;
Through the identification of key principles and the use of case studies, assist
planning authorities to develop frameworks for infrastructure delivery;
Provide recommendations to refine / strengthen the identified approaches to
infrastructure delivery; and
Inform whether further advice is needed.

This final report is based upon novel research which comprised:
x
x

x

x

Scoping to identify types of infrastructure, approaches to infrastructure delivery
through the planning system, time horizons and development types.
A literature review, uncovering UK-wide concerns about strategic infrastructure and
sub-national infrastructure which relies on planning obligations, and the mixed
public-private funding and delivery required as bank debt has been curtailed. The
role of the development planning system as a mechanism to secure infrastructure is
not widely recognised and is not embedded in infrastructure planning.
A review of Scotland’s Development Plans establishes that the majority of Local
Plans and Local Development Plans (LDPs) (89%) have policies on the delivery of
infrastructure to facilitate development. Alternative approaches reflecting underlying
issues - such as delivering development in rural or regeneration areas - are
continuing into new LDPs. Action Programmes are inconsistent in their format and
detail, and actions are not always owned or time-bound. The chief planning
obligation mechanisms in operation are: cross boundary; local authority wide; zonal;
project based; and site driven. These reflect the different levels at which the impacts
of development can be felt, assessed and mitigated.
An online survey issued to all 38 Scottish planning authorities attracted a 95%
response rate. The priority given to planning for infrastructure has risen since the
economic downturn and the modernisation of the planning system. Cumulative
impacts are largely being experienced in growth areas. Nearly three quarters of
planning authorities gain sufficient certainty of capacity and additional demand
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through engagement with infrastructure providers. However, far fewer gain certainty
of costs, funding and timing. Engagement is extensive but not consistent and drops
after a Proposed Plan is complete. Section 75 obligations are the most common
means of securing funding.
x

x

Consultations with 36 organisations including planning authorities, developers,
masterplanners, industry bodies, utilities, education and transport providers and
funders. Early dialogue between some planning authorities and developers has
improved, however, communication breakdown and uncertainty persist. Despite a
standard policy approach, securing infrastructure contributions is seen mainly as a
negotiation. There is support for a “flat charge” for infrastructure to create developer
certainty, bring forward the best sites and provide funding. Scottish Water’s tranche
approach to apportioning infrastructure costs is regarded as a positive move. An era
of much more detailed forward planning is emerging, but some believe that the
planning system cannot overcome multiple ownerships and lack of affordability of
upfront infrastructure costs.
Eight detailed case studies were selected in agreement with the Scottish
Government. The case studies and summary findings are:
1. Aberdeen and Aberdeenshire Councils’ Strategic Transport Fund
Multi-authority / agency mechanisms, with developer contributions towards
strategic / cumulative impacts, are possible within the existing planning policy
framework. A negative impact on the road network has been accepted as
necessary to allow development to get underway, thus allowing contributions to
be made and upgrades paid for retrospectively.
2. Perth & Kinross Council Local Development Plan
STPR (Strategic Transport Projects Review) projects and local projects are not
always aligned to support the LDP strategy. Project costs will not be wholly
covered by developer contributions and other funding streams are required,
particularly upfront funding.
3. Fife Council’s Planning Obligation Framework
Fife Council does not engage in prudential borrowing or allocate funds from its
capital programme for infrastructure to facilitate development. The focus has
been on introducing a project management approach for Strategic Development
Areas and a new Planning Obligations Framework to provide clear guidance on
developer contributions, particularly for strategic infrastructure.
4. Dundee City Council’s corporate approach to planning and investing
Dundee City Council borrows to forward fund development, taking a long term
view of risk and balancing the need for the relatively low level of borrowing
required to deliver strategic priorities, such as the City’s Western Gateway. This
approach is supported by the distinctive structure of the multi-disciplinary City
Development Department in bringing together working groups for projects.

2
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5. Midlothian Council’s use of borrowing and smart spreadsheets
Midlothian Council borrowed to fund schools after the housing market stalled in
2008. A corporate structure and dedicated resources allowed all primary schools
and four of six secondary schools to be extended or replaced. Costs are to be
repaid via developer contributions. A smart spreadsheet resolves complications
arising from multiple ownerships and cumulative impacts by putting in place a
framework for future solutions.
6. The Highland Council’s forward funding of the West Link section of the
Inverness Southern Distributor Road
The Highland Council funded that part of the West Link route that does not relate
to development but is required to address congestion and enhance wider
economic opportunities. The Development Brief for Torvean and Ness-shire and
an internal Project Board refined the project, examining how it relates to land
uses and also how non-road based travel can be maximised. This strengthened
the planning basis for requiring developer contributions towards the road.
7. West Lothian Council’s Local Infrastructure Fund (LIF)
The LIF demonstrates that successful forward funding mechanisms can be put in
place without recourse to borrowing or other external funding. Flexibility around
school catchment areas and use of school extensions can overcome significant
upfront barriers to development. A strong working relationship with education
planners and the development plan team allows a joint approach. However,
growing budgetary pressures may limit the future ability to forward fund.
8. Clydeplan’s approach to infrastructure in less viable market areas
Developer contributions cannot overcome barriers to development in areas
where there are insufficiently high land values. Public sector intervention is
necessary to deliver development and can transform and create local housing
markets. Planning for infrastructure at the strategic level can struggle without
appropriate structures for the relevant agencies to co-operate within. In such
situations, alignment of investment and development strategies is a challenge.
The three principal lessons from these case studies are that market conditions
drive greater or lesser reliance on developer contributions, local authority attitude
towards risk is uneven and can reduce choice in delivering a development plan
strategy, and corporate structures can help to deliver infrastructure for services
where these are under local authority control, such as schools.

Planning for Infrastructure: Overview of Research Conclusions
There are three principal challenges in using the planning system as a mechanism to
marshal infrastructure to support new development, and thereby to contribute to the
Scottish Government’s central purpose of increasing sustainable economic growth.
These challenges – planning and delivery; structure and agency; and development and
infrastructure – are summarised below.
3
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1: Planning and Delivery
Scottish Planning Policy introduced a presumption in favour of development that
contributes to sustainable development. Development should make efficient use of
existing infrastructure capacity, but will also require mitigation through new capacity.
Development planning influence falls away early in the infrastructure planning process.
The planning system does not directly fund nor deliver infrastructure; it is the
choreographer of other agencies and departments.
The process of creating the new development plan hierarchy has not yet matured.
Many new LDPs continue to support historic site allocations. A lack of robust appraisal
of sites to define the steps required to achieve development has persisted.
The roles, processes and mechanisms for planning for infrastructure are still being
established, and will be adapted over time. It may be the second - or more probably the
third - iteration of LDPs which fully embed the modernised planning system within their
planning for infrastructure.
2: Structure and Agency
Planning for infrastructure is a structure-agency problem. The structural market
challenge of identifying, funding and delivering infrastructure to accompany
development is largely tractable; but is greatly compounded by and interwoven with the
problem of agency fragmentation.
A single infrastructure type may have a physical provider, service provider(s), regulator
and funder(s), operating through a dynamic hierarchy of development plans in the
context of changing economic and infrastructure strategies, under the aegis of a range
of national bodies with statutory responsibilities. A development project of any scale
may have dozens of legitimate agents, plus community and political interests.
It is probably not possible to roll back from this complexity, but it is important to
appreciate the choreography which the planning system is being asked to perform. The
current plan-led system is a valid attempt to overcome this structure-agency problem,
by better coordinating infrastructure delivery.
3: Development and Infrastructure
The Scottish development market moved from mainly state provision of infrastructure
pre-1980s, through increasing private provision to 2007. However, only a limited
number of well-capitalised organisations now have the resources to fund major
infrastructure and mixed public-private provision will continue to be required.
Development viability varies by land use, infrastructure, place and time. If land values
are to be hypothecated via developer contributions then much better and more
consistent appraisal is required. Land value volatility is exceptionally difficult to
accommodate within a 5-year LDP and regular reappraisal will be required.
Market certainty is a major issue. Development delivery is a complex arena often
involving landowners, funders, developers and occupier demand. Uncertainty and
4
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change leads to re-negotiation; where market demand, development economics and
relationships are misunderstood, land may simply not be brought forward.
Household growth in parts of eastern and central Scotland, and pockets of the west, is
creating major new infrastructure demands. It is unproven whether resources
marshalled via Action Programmes can address these additional demands in the
context of curtailed bank funding and public sector austerity. However, formal action
programming with infrastructure providers, front funding and new mechanisms such as
City Deal are opportunities which can and should be embedded in development plans.
Infrastructure types are not all equal. New schools are the most challenging; these are
capital-intensive, land-hungry and require to be delivered early in a development.
A core concern for the Scottish Government in commissioning this project was the issue
of cumulative impact. This is most acute in areas of growth where developers are
expected to contribute to major transport projects or the provision or expansion of new
schools. This is because Circular 3/2012 requires a clear linkage between development
and infrastructure impacts. Capture mechanisms are designed in great detail, but are
still open to question on the basis of the principle of proving that linkage.
Planning for Infrastructure: Recommendations
The planning for infrastructure research project has resulted in 35 recommendations
grouped under 7 headings. These are summarised below and explained in greater
detail in Section 8 of the final report.
Theme
Modernised
Planning
System

Recommendations
1. There needs to be greater promotion of the role of the planning system as a
means of coordinating funding and delivery of infrastructure for development.
2. There is a need for greater understanding within planning authorities about
infrastructure and how the agencies that deliver it are governed and funded.
3. NPF3 and the National Infrastructure Plan and subsequent Infrastructure
Investment Plans should converge over time through iteration, but that
alignment should also be considered as a high level objective.
4. City or regional infrastructure investment must be identified, co-ordinated and
highlighted through the Development Plan and not in separate initiatives.
5. A broader consideration of infrastructure requirements should be embedded in
to the plan-making process, including digital and heat infrastructure.
6. Better integration of the Community Planning process and Development Plan is
required to enhance deliverability.

5
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Action
Programmes

7. Engagement with infrastructure providers for emerging Development Plans
must have a significantly increased focus on costing, funding and timing of
delivery. This will require a still greater level of engagement and more focus
from Key Agencies on delivery to support sustainable economic growth.
8. The Key Agencies Group should prioritise Recommendation 7 to improve and
align (or reorganise) their forward planning processes to improve the fit with
development planning.
9. A rolling programme of consultations with infrastructure agencies and
departments is recommended, to overcome the isolated surge of activity around
the preparation of the Development Plan.
10. Planning authorities should write Action Programmes in consultation with
developers and any other party being assigned a specific project, to secure from
the relevant party; costings, timescales and funding proposals. If these are not
secured, a commensurate level of risk in relation to the ability of a site to be
delivered should be assigned within the Action Programme.
11. A standard template for Action Programmes should be developed by the
Scottish Government. Ownership, timing, cost and funding components and
attendant level of risk associated with delivery should all feature.
12. Planning authorities should work with the development industry to assign a level
of risk to site delivery. If an allocated site remains high risk at the end of an LDP
cycle, it should be deallocated in the next LDP unless evidence can be
presented during plan preparation that this risk level will change imminently.
13. Further work should be undertaken by the Scottish Government to review
guidance and advice that could support planning authorities in the deallocation
of non-effective sites.
14. A gateway review of Action Programmes should be carried out in 2016, when
significantly more of these will be in place. This should be undertaken alongside
the development of an Action Programme template (see Recommendation 11).
15. A pilot project could promote Simplified Planning Zones to test how bound-in
infrastructure investment is within Action Programmes, by treating a site
allocation as an in-principle planning application.

Infrastructure
Costing and
Funding

16. Planning authorities should consider site infrastructure implications and
constraints in greater detail, starting from the call for sites. This will require
timely, cost-effective and transparent information from all parties – including
developers/ promoters, Council departments and agencies. This has resource
implications however far greater certainty regarding site viability and
effectiveness would flow from it.
17. Building upon recommendation 16, each development site allocated in the plan
should have an attendant cost plan for infrastructure delivery, developed by site
promoter(s) in partnership with the relevant key agencies and planning
authority. Each cost plan can be assessed by the planning authority for viability
(see Recommendation 32) and deliverability and the findings reflected in the
Action Programme.

6
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18. There is inconsistency across Scotland in relation to the risk appetite of local
authorities to forward fund through borrowing. This should be considered by the
Scottish Government and COSLA.
19. Site allocations should be prioritised or sought out where serviced land can be
brought forward by a lead agency, owner, developer or joint venture capable of
making the site effective for development.
20. Education (schools) is the most prominent infrastructure concern. A much more
transparent and standardised approach to planning, funding and delivering
schools is required, perhaps by SFT working with planning authorities,
developers and the Scottish Government. A supporting study examining the
interaction of education and development planning is also recommended. At
LDP level, in the absence of specific commitments to fund and deliver schools,
allocated sites should not be considered to be fully effective.
21. The UK Guarantees Scheme for Infrastructure Projects may be a means of
overcoming the risk associated with front funding infrastructure for residential
development. A similar Scottish Government-backed guarantee scheme could
provide an additional means of de-risking infrastructure investment by
underwriting a developer’s loan, allowing them to access bank finance for
infrastructure investment / Section 75 contributions.
22. In addition, it is recommended that a new fund is established by the Scottish
Government to create seed funding to provide upfront infrastructure. This
should be in the form of a repayable zero interest loan or a grant.
23. A standard development charge is not appropriate across Scotland’s diverse
economy. However, development charges may be justified where a basket of
infrastructure is to be funded by multiple parties. The Scottish Government
should enact policy / legislation (whichever is most appropriate) that allows an
area-wide standard development charge. Authorities would apply for the ability
to levy this charge via a business case demonstrating development,
infrastructure and associated funding streams.
Cumulative
Impacts

24. A review should be conducted of Circular 3/2012 to ascertain whether there is
sufficient certainty for planning authorities to mitigate the impact of cumulative
impacts. If additional certainty is required, amendments to the Circular should
be taken forward or the lack of clarity should be addressed through advice from
the Scottish Government.
25. Mechanisms used to collect contributions towards funding infrastructure in
Development Plans show flexibility, however there is just one cross boundary
funding mechanism in Scotland. Transport Scotland and the Regional Transport
Partnerships should continue to work together to build an evidence base at the
city-region level in particular to support the measurement, monitoring and
mitigation of cumulative impacts on the trunk road network.
26. Within Strategic Development Plans, a city-region approach should be taken to
establishing and consulting on a consistent policy framework for developer
contributions.

7
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27. DPMTAG (Development Planning and Management Transport Appraisal
Guidance) appraisals should be carried out at the Main Issues Report stage of
all LDPs. This would allow greater clarity and consistency around planning for
transport infrastructure and particularly the implications of any cumulative
impacts of development on the transport network.
Section 75
Agreements

28. There is a need for a simplified or streamlined Section 75 process. Template
Section 75 agreements should be put in place to allow the process of signing
these to progress more smoothly and quickly.
29. Local authorities should each have – or share - a dedicated planning officer to
lead the negotiation of Section 75 agreements. This would increase the quality
and consistency in approach to these agreements.
30. A number of authorities publish (or state that they account for) contributions
raised through S75 contributions. Merging information on developer
contributions raised into Action Programmes would raise the profile of the
planning system as a means of delivering infrastructure and promote
consistency of approach.
31. Planning authorities should investigate the scope for utilising smart
spreadsheets in order for a model of contributions to be incorporated into
Section 75 agreements rather than an agreed fixed sum. This would provide far
greater flexibility in seeking to address cumulative impacts from multiple sites.

Development
Viability

32. Testing of development viability for sites requires to be located within the
development plan process and integrated with site cost plans. The Scottish
Government should promote a standard template for this. Over successive
LDPs more effective sites will come to the fore, while undeliverable legacy sites
and infrastructure proposals lapse and are expected to be de-allocated.
33. Further study is required into the best means of deallocating sites that have
proven to be undeliverable within the LDP period. This should be undertaken in
partnership with the property and housebuilding industry in order to establish
agreed criteria and appropriate policy tools. The removal of these sites will have
a positive impact in terms of releasing infrastructure capacity for alternative
sites. This could form a joint initiative with Recommendations 12 and 13.
34. Development Plans are already recognising that generic approaches to
infrastructure provision cannot be used across core and peripheral markets. A
still greater understanding is required of the need to differentiate according to
scale, geography, infrastructure mix and development viability.

Development
Plan Review

35. Finally, it is recommended that the Development Plan Review, undertaken as
part of this research project, is refreshed in 2016 in order to capture more
information from currently emerging Local Development Plans.
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Agenda Item 7

ABERDEEN CITY & SHIRE
STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT PLANNING AUTHORITY
Date: 23 September 2015
Title: Dates for 2016/17 Meetings
1

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to provide the SDPA with the proposed dates for
the 2016/17 diary.

2

Background

2.1

The Clerks for both authorities have been instructed to check both Council
diaries for the forthcoming year to avoid any conflicts.

2.2

The proposed dates for next year are:•

15 June, 2016 2pm - Woodhill House

•

21 Sept, 2016 2pm – Aberdeen City Town House

•

21 Dec, 2016 2pm – Woodhill House

•

22 March, 2017 2pm – Aberdeen City Town House

3

Recommendations

3.1

It is recommended that the SDPA:
a) agree to the proposed dates; and
b) request the clerks to send out appointments to members and ensure
venues are booked.
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